
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services  
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk,  
Tel: 07895 213735 
 

 

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 7 February 2022 
 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 15 FEBRUARY 2022 AT 7.00 PM 
 

FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 

You can watch this meeting via this weblink: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ 
 
If you are attending in person you will need to bring a portable device, such as a laptop 
or tablet to listen to and watch the meeting. You will also need to bring a 
headset/headphones. 

 
 

Members of the Committee: 

Max Thompson (Chair) 

Val Shaw (Vice-Chair) 
Ron Batstone 
Cheryl Briggs 
 

Jenny Hannaby 
Diana Lugova 
Ben Mabbett 
 

Mike Pighills 
Janet Shelley 
 

Substitutes Councillors 

Jerry Avery 
Paul Barrow, Dr 
Eric Batts 

Nathan Boyd 
Andy Cooke 
Amos Duveen 

Hayleigh Gascoigne 
Simon Howell 
Alison Jenner 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

 
1.  Chair's announcements   

 
To receive any announcements from the chair, and general housekeeping matters. 

 
2.  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
3.  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 15) 

 
To adopt and sign as correct records the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meetings held on 29 September and 20 October 2021.   
 
4.  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
5.  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.   
 
6.  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   

 
 

Planning applications 
 

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours. 
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 
 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page. 

 
 
     



  3 

 

7.  Care Home site, 
Centre West 
Phase, 
Kingsgrove   

Reserved Matters application for the 
construction of a 72 bed care home 
(Use Class C2), with associated 
access, parking, landscaping, plant 
and site infrastructure, pursuant to 
outline planning permission 
P19/V1269/FUL. Details submitted in 
accordance with conditions 8, 17, 19, 
20, 21, 23, 24, 27, 29, 30, 31, 33, 34, 
35, 37, 38, 43, 48 and 54. As 
amended by plans and information 
received 29 September 2021, 28 
October 2021 and 17 December 
2021.   

P21/V2040/RM 16 - 39 

 

     
8.  Former Esso 

Research 
Centre, 
Abingdon Road, 
Milton Hill, 
OX13 6BD   

Erection of 4no. commercial buildings 
for purposes within Classes B2 and 
B8 together with access and servicing 
arrangements, parking, landscaping, 
boundary treatment, gatehouse 
building, public art installation and 
associated works. (as per 
amendments received 30th 
November 2021 and Transport 
Assessment Addendum received 10 
January 2022 and additional and 
amended information received 18 
January 2022 ).   

 40 - 98 

 

     
9.  Dulcina, 

Newmans 
Close, Upton, 
OX11 9JA   

Partial demolition of existing dwelling. 
Erection of new front and rear 
extensions. Conversion of existing loft 
space into habitable accommodation. 
Refurbishment and associated 
internal reconfiguration (parking 
arrangements and fenestration detail 
clarified on plans submitted 28th and 
31st January 2022).   

P21/V3077/HH 99 - 124 

 

     
10.  Dunraven 

House, 32 
London Street, 
Faringdon, SN7 
7AA   

Replacement of existing rotting 
wooden slimline double-glazed 
windows on the first and second floor 
to the rear of the property. 

P21/V3079/LB 125 - 
131 

 

 
 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 29 September 2021 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday 29 September 2021 at 6.00 pm  
135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Jerry Avery (substituting for 

Councillor Mike Pighills), Ron Batstone, Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Ben Mabbett and 
Janet Shelley 
 
Officers: Paul Bateman, Emily Hamerton and Susie Royse 
 

Remote attendance: 
 
Officers:    Adrian Butler 
 
 

34 Chair's announcements  
 
The chair ran through housekeeping arrangements appropriate to an in-person meeting 
which was being simultaneously broadcast. 
 

35 Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Cheryl Briggs and Councillor Mike 
Pighills. Councillor Jerry Avery substituted for Councillor Pighills. 
 

36 Declarations of interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

37 Urgent business  
 
The senior planning officer reported that Item 8 on the agenda, Land at Yarnells Hill 
(application P20/V2298/FUL), had been withdrawn for consideration at this meeting. Since 
the publication of the agenda information had been received in respect of the probable 
effect of the proposals upon badgers in the vicinity of the site. Council officers were now 
considering this information. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 29 September 2021 

38 Public participation  
 
A list showing members of the public who had registered to speak had been sent to the 
committee prior to the meeting. Statements received from the public were circulated to the 
committee prior to the meeting. 
 

39 P20/V0738/FUL - Land at Park Farm, East Challow  
 
The committee considered application P20/V0738/FUL for a residential development of 36 
dwellings, comprising a partial re-plan of details approved under application reference 
P18/V0744/RM, to include an uplift of 10 no. additional dwellings, a revised housing mix 
across the relevant development parcels and associated development works (as amended 
14 July 2021) on Land at Park Farm, East Challow. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting. 
 
The planning officer reported that the application site formed part of an area on which the 
council had permitted 88 dwellings and that development had commenced with some 
houses completed and others under construction. The application sought to revise the 
central and northern parts of the approved scheme to increase the number of dwellings 
proposed across the wider Park Farm site from 88 to 98 dwellings; an uplift of 10 dwellings. 
In combination with approved application P21/V0293/FUL, the number of dwellings across 
the wider Park Farm site would be uplifted by 11 dwellings from 88 to 99. The planning 
officer referred to section 2 of the report which detailed the planning history of this site, 
showing a number of approvals and one refusal. 
 
The planning officer also described the affordable housing and market housing mixes, full 
details of which were provided at paragraphs 5.9 to 5.15 of the report. With particular 
reference to plot 60, the planning officer explained that the house on this plot had been built 
in accordance with a previous approval but was some 8 sq m smaller than the space 
standard of 79 sq m required by policy DP2 of the Local Plan Part 2 for a four person two-
bedroom dwelling, and that this was a reason for refusal as part of application 
P20/V1395/FUL. 
 
The planning officer advised the committee that the market mix did not follow the Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) estimate, but the SHMA acknowledged that 
prescriptive figures should not be included in the plan- making process and that the ‘market’ 
was to some degree a better judge of what was the most appropriate profile of homes to 
deliver at any point in time. The most recent Annual Monitoring Report, dated 2020. 
indicated that the council had been over-providing 1 and 2-bedroom dwellings, under-
providing 3 bedroom dwellings, whilst 4+ bed dwellings met the SHMA standard. The 
variation from SHMA needed to be considered in the planning balance. The planning officer 
also referred to residential amenity issues and advised the committee that the closest 
distance between windows in proposed and existing dwellings exceeded this distance and 
there was no unreasonable overlooking or overbearing impact on existing dwellings. The 
proposals accorded with the design guide and Development Policy (DP) 23 of the Local 
Plan Part 2. 
 
Nicholas Daruwalla, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Statement by East Challow Parish Council 
 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 29 September 2021 

The committee regretted the loss of the roundabout at the Park Farm site and requested 
further details. The planning officer reported that under application P16/V0652/O outline 
planning permission had been sought for 88 dwellings on the site. The application proposed 
access from the A417 via a four - arm roundabout. Following a positive recommendation by 
officers, the planning committee had resolved to approve the application, and outline 
permission was granted.  
 
The planning officer further reported that subsequently an application (P17/V2884/FUL) had 
been received seeking to replace the roundabout with a staggered priority junction. The 
application was presented to the planning committee on 13 February 2018, with a 
recommendation for approval. A local resident and the ward member spoke objecting to the 
application at the committee meeting and the concerns expressed by the parish council and 
local residents, plus comments from Oxfordshire County Council as Highway Authority (who 
did not object), were summarised in the committee report. There was no technical evidence 
to suggest that the staggered priority junction would be unsafe. It would not have been 
appropriate for the committee to decide that the roundabout might be a safer option; the 
staggered priority junction had to be considered on its own merits. Based on the merits of 
the scheme and having considered objections to the proposal, it was resolved to approve 
the application. 
 
In conclusion, the committee considered that the proposal was acceptable, subject to the 
imposition of conditions and securing a s.106 agreement for infrastructure and service 
improvements as listed in the committee report, and provided affordable housing. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was carried on being put to 
the vote. 
 
It is recommended  
 
RESOLVED: that authority to grant planning permission for planning application 
P20/V0738/FUL is delegated to the head of planning subject to:  
 
1.  A S106 agreement being entered into to secure contributions towards local infrastructure 
and services including education and bus service improvements, management of public 
open spaces and the play area and to secure affordable housing; and 
 
2. Conditions as follows: 
1. Development to commence within three years. 
2. Approved plans. 
 
Pre-Commencement Conditions 
3. Tree protection as submitted to be implemented. 
4. Surface and foul water drainage scheme to be agreed. 
 
Pre-Occupancy or Other Stage Conditions 
5. External materials in accordance with approved plan. 
6. Construction method statement including vehicle routing to avoid using Letcombe 
Hill. 
7. Landscaping scheme implementation. 
8. Play area implementation. 
9. Boundary treatments in accordance with approved plans. 
10. Road and footway construction to each dwelling to be provided before each 
occupation. 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 29 September 2021 

11. Parking and turning spaces for each dwelling to be provided prior to 
 occupation of each plot. 
12. Residential travel information pack. 
13. Active electric charging points for each dwelling. 
14. Implementation of ecological enhancements. 
15. Bat box provision. 
 
Post Occupancy Monitoring and Management Conditions 
16. Construction hours – 7.30 to 18.00 Monday to Friday 8.00 to 13.00 Saturday no 
works on Sunday or bank holidays. 
17. Retention of garages. 
 
Informatives 
1. Work close to water mains. 
2. Thames Water aims for water pressure provision. 
3. Broadband provision. 
4. Land drainage consent needed for any works to watercourses or ditches. 
 

40 P21/V1338/FUL - East Challow Site, Hamilton Drive, East Challow  
 
The committee considered application P21/V1338/FUL for the variation of condition 4 on 
application P19/V1921/FUL - to replace original arboricultural report (Variation of condition 1 
(approved plans) of application P17/V2502/RM. Reserved Matters Application for Access, 
Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale for a Residential Development of 38 
Dwellings, including up to 13 Affordable Dwellings, with Associated Car Parking and 
Amenity Space and On-Site Public Open Space, pursuant to outline Planning Permission 
P16/V1714/O) at East Challow Site, Hamilton Drive, East Challow. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting. 
 
Statement by Miss Sanders, a local resident.  
 
The committee was concerned at the temporary but ongoing loss to the residents of a public 
footpath for safety reasons, owing to the requirement to re-locate an electricity pole to 
accommodate the development.  The committee wished that this amenity be restored as 
soon as possible and instructed the planning officer to contact the OCC, urging it to impress 
upon the electricity company to expedite matters and complete the necessary works without 
delay. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was carried on being put to 
the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: that authority to grant planning permission for planning application 
P21/V1338/FUL is delegated to the head of planning subject to:  
 
1. A Deed of Variation is entered into to ensure previous s106 requirements apply to this 
application. 
 
2. Conditions as follows: 
 
1. Approved plans 
 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 29 September 2021 

Pre-Occupancy or Other Stage Conditions 
2. Landscaping implementation in the next planting season and retention. 
3. Hedge retention at 2m high. 
4. Tree protection. 
5. Access in accordance with details approved under application P19/V1039/DIS. 
6. Roads and footway provision to each house before occupation. 
7. Car parking for each house provided before occupation. 
8. Construction Traffic Management Plan approved under application P19/V1039/DIS to 
be complied with. 
9. Residential travel information pack as approved under application P18/V0237/DIS. 
10. Surface water drainage scheme to be implemented in accordance with the details 
approved under application P19/V1039/DIS. 
11. Foul water drainage scheme to be implemented in accordance with the details 
approved under application P16/V3030/DIS. 
12. Biodiversity enhancement measures approved under application P17/V2920/DIS 
shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the penultimate dwelling. 
13. Noise attenuation in accordance with approved scheme. 
14. Boundary treatments in accordance with approved details. 
 
Post Occupancy Monitoring and Management Conditions 
15. Permitted development rights for extensions and roof alterations removed – plots 1 to 
6 and plot 17. 
16. Construction hours restricted to 07.30 to 18.00 Monday to Friday and 0800 to 13.00 
on a Saturday. No work shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays. 
 

41 P20/V2298/FUL - Land at Yarnells Hill, Oxford  
 
This application was withdrawn, owing to further information being received since the 
publication of the agenda, as described by the senior planning officer at item 4 on the 
agenda, urgent business. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 7.20 pm 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Planning Committee 

held on Wednesday 20 October 2021 at 6.00 
pm 
135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
 

 

Present in the meeting room 
Members: Councillors Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Ron Batstone, 
Cheryl Briggs, Diana Lugova, Ben Mabbett, Robert Maddison (as substitute for Jenny 
Hannaby), and Mike Pighills 
Officers: Michael Flowers and Emily Hamerton 
 

Remote attendance 
Officers: Sally Appleyard, Paul Bateman, Anthony Bubb (Oxfordshire County Council), 
Adrian Butler, Bertram Smith, Stuart Walker, and Tim Williams 
 
 

1 Chair's announcements  
 
The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed and 
advised on emergency evacuation arrangements. 
 

2 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillors Jenny Hannaby and Janet Shelly tendered apologies.  
 

3 Declarations of interest  
 
Councillors Ron Batstone and Ben Mabbett stood down from application P21/V1096/FUL as 
they were local ward members. 
 

4 Urgent business  
 
None. 
 

5 Public participation  
 
The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak had been sent to the 
committee prior to the meeting. Statements received from the public were circulated to the 
committee prior to the meeting. 
 

6 P20/V1388/O - Land South of A415, Marcham  
 
The committee considered application P20/V1388/O for outline planning permission for 
residential development of up to 90 dwellings (Use Class C3) including means of access 
into the site (not internal roads) and associated highway works, with all other matters 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

(relating to appearance, landscaping, scale and layout) reserved (as per the updated air 
quality assessment received on 11 November 2020, drainage technical note 29 March 
2021, Frilford Lights technical note 31 March 2021 and Frilford lights mitigation 23 July 
2021). 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
The planning officer provided the context of the application’s return to the committee, 
explaining that the committee had deferred the application on the 8th September 2021 in 
order to receive further clarification and new information on; 
 

1. School capacity 

2. Foul water flooding 

3. Primary care 

4. Air quality 

5. Frilford junction 

6. Cycle access 

7. A Members site visit 

The planning officer went through each category and provided the committee with an 
update to what new information had been collected and how they would contribute to the 
overall impact to the local area, should planning permission for the application be granted. 
The committee were also told that all reasons for a deferral had been solved and that while 
some collisions had occurred on the A415, that there was no particular pattern to the 
collisions. Additionally, it was noted that while there had been a fatal collision six years prior 
involving a cyclist, there had been no recorded fatal collisions since. The planning officer 
therefore held the view that subject to the conditions proposed and a Section 106 
agreement, officers were satisfied with the application and recommended that planning 
permission be granted. 
 
Michael Hoath, representative of Marcham Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application.  
 
A question was asked about the level of traffic passing the site and whether any 
arrangements had been proposed for entrances, crossing points, and a widening of the road 
and footways. The response was that an entrance had been added to the east of the site. 
Mr Hoath explained that there were five exits to a similar site within 300 metres and that a 
better layout would have been to have a north-east exit and mini-roundabout. The parish 
council therefore considered the site layout to be poor in design. 
 
Ed Barrett, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
In response to questions from the committee regarding electric vehicle charging points, Mr 
Barrett explained that the majority of houses would have electric vehicle charging points. Mr 
Barrett also responded to a question on discussions with Thames Water that talks were 
ongoing, but that he expected this to be completed towards the end of the year and 
confirmed that houses would not be occupied until Thames Water work had been 
completed. 
 
The committee asked the planning officer whether based on the number of technical issues 
raised, did the application have a significant cumulative risk which put the application at the 
borderline of acceptability. The planning officer responded that the technical issues raised 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

were standalone for consideration, and that all technical consultees were not in objection. 
While some aspects of the application were tight, they were currently considered to be at an 
acceptable level.  
 
The committee raised questions regarding speeding traffic, safety for users of the cycle / 
footway beside the A415 and sought clarification from the Highways Officer on what 
modelling took place to analyse the safety of the proposal should planning permission be 
granted. The committee were told in response that no modelling had been done, but the 
layout had been in full compliance with the relevant guidance. In addition, a controlled 
pedestrian crossing would be determined by the speed limit of the road. It was also clarified 
that the 30mph speed limit would be extended eastward of the site, but enforcement of the 
speed limit would be a Thames Valley Police responsibility. The access arrangement itself 
complies with guidance and had been subject to an independent safety audit that did not 
raise any issues with the pedestrian crossing.  
 
A question was asked by the committee on whether there would be an increased flood risk 
to surrounding properties during construction. The planning officer advised construction 
would not impact on foul water drainage, and there was no evidence that it would result in 
flood risks. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P20/V1388/O, subject to the 
following conditions; 
1. A S.106 agreement being entered into to secure contributions towards local 

infrastructure, management of public open spaces and to secure affordable housing; and 
 
Conditions as follows: 

1. Reserved matters (internal access arrangements, appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale) to be submitted 

2. Application for approval of reserved matters within three years and development to 
commence within two-years of approval of final reserved matter 

3. Approved plans 
 
Pre Commencement Conditions 

4. Tree and hedge protection to be approved 
5. Levels to be agreed 
6. Construction Management Plan including wheel washing, HGV delivery route, dust 

suppression and deliveries outside the hours of 7.30 to 9.30 and 16.00 to 18.00 
7. Surface water drainage to be approved 
8. Archaeological written scheme of investigation  
9. Staged programme of archaeological investigation 
10. A construction environmental management plan for biodiversity (CEMP: Biodiversity) 

to be approved 
 
Pre-Occupancy or Other Stage Conditions 

11. Foul water drainage to be approved 
12. Drainage compliance report to be submitted and approved 
13. Noise mitigation to be set out as part of the reserved matters application 
14. Concurrent with the submission of any reserved matters application a Biodiversity 

Enhancement Plan (BEP) to be submitted to and approved 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

15. Access to A415, pedestrian crossing point, foot/cycle way provision beside the A415, 
relocation of speed limit and gateway in accordance with approved plan and prior to 
occupation of any dwelling. 

16. Concurrent with the submission of any reserved matters application details of 
pedestrian and cycle access to the A415 to be submitted 

17. Travel plan and travel information pack 
18. Active electric vehicle charging points for each dwelling 
19. Details of hedge planting behind vision splays as part of reserved matters submission 
20. Market housing mix to be agreed 
21. Space standards - policy DP2 compliant 

 
Post Occupancy Monitoring and Management Conditions 

22.  Maximum two storeys dwellings only 
23. No more than 90 dwellings permitted 

 
Informatives 

1. Broadband provision 
2. Bird nesting 
3. Protection of Thames Water underground assets 
4. S106 obligation 

 

7 P20/V0855/O - Rogers Concrete, Sandshill, Faringdon  
 
The committee considered application P20/V0855/O for outline planning application with all 
matters reserved (other than access into the site) for the proposed mixed use development 
of up to 95 residential dwellings and business space (Use Classes B1 and B8) (totalling 
1,500 sqm), open space, landscaping, drainage measures and all other associated works. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
The planning officer explained the background to the current application, explaining that the 
committee originally considered the application on the 18th August 2021, but had deferred 
the application in order to receive further information that had been requested. Since the 
deferral, the applicant had amended their proposal to increase employment opportunity from 
increased commercial floor space. It was confirmed that the site would include fifteen 
percent of the site area as public open space. The planning officer also explained that the 
proposed link for public transport, cyclists, and private motor vehicles were deemed 
acceptable, and that the amended application would maximise viable commercial space on 
the site, with a mixed use scheme not undermining the sustainable provision of possible 
employment opportunities. 
 
Dr Mike Wise, representative of Faringdon Town Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
The committee asked Mr Wise whether he had a preference towards what pedestrian 
crossing the parish would prefer to be added to assist pedestrians using the A420. Mr Wise 
stated that the parish would be satisfied with any form of crossing added, as their view was 
that the current road was not safe for pedestrians, although of the options, a bridge or 
subway tunnel would be most preferable. 
 
Sarah Allen-Stevens and Richard Anstis, local residents, spoke in objection to the 
application. 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

 
The speakers were asked by the committee what businesses would be operated if the site 
was owned as an eco-business park. Mrs Allen-Stevens confirmed it would not be logistical 
businesses but would likely focus manufacturing. 
 
Tim Burden, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
David Grant, local ward member, spoke in objection to the application. 
 
The committee raised a question on what conditions the local ward member would seek for 
the application to improve the safety concerns. Councillor Grant explained that for the 
bridleway crossing, there needed to be a safer designated crossing area. Councillor Grant 
also requested further clarification pedestrian and cycle links which would be added to other 
access areas. A further question was raised by the committee to the speaker on core policy 
29 of the local plan, and the discussions that took place between the ward member and 
planning officers. Councillor Grant explained that the policy had not been well written and 
there had been a difference in interpretation of the policy between himself and officers. 
Councillor Grant explained that they had not reached an agreement on the interpretation of 
the wording of the policy. 
 
In response to a question from the committee on the history of the site and its place within 
the Local Plan, the planning officer explained that the site was allocated in part 1 of the 
Local Plan which was adopted in December 2016, and so the evidence base for the 
employment land review and local plan review would have taken place prior to 2016 before 
the adoption of the local plan. 
 
The committee asked a question surrounding the availability of other employment space on 
the land within the application site. The planning officer confirmed that some of the land 
would be retained and would be available for future development. Additionally, in response 
to a question surrounding Thames Water’s statement that the site could not be connected to 
the grid, and would require its own foul water maintenance, the planning officer confirmed 
that the planning conditions would be sufficient for handling independent management of 
these utilities as an isolated activity. 
 
The committee asked a question on the provision of a crossing on the A420.  Officers 
advised such a facility was not necessary to meet the needs of the development and could 
not be secured, as third-party land outside the applicant’s control would be required. 
  
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P20/V0855/O, subject to the 
following conditions; 
 
Reserved matters and timings 

1. Commencement – Outline Planning Permission 
2. Commencement – Outline with Reserved Matters 
3. Approved plans 
4. Maximum number of dwellings (no more than 95) 
5. Quantum of employment floor space to be 1,500sqm 
6. Employment use restricted to Class B1/B8 use only 

 
Concurrent with the submission of the reserved matters 

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

7. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 
8. Landscaping (S38 and S278 works) 
9. Landscaping management  
10. Landscaping – details 
11. Market mix 
12. Space Standards 
13. Foul water network capacity 
14. Water supply network capacity 

 
Pre-Commencement 

15. Slab levels  
16. Construction environmental management plan for Biodiversity 
17. Contaminated Land 
18. Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) 
19. Tree Protection (Detailed) 
20. Surface water drainage 
21. Foul water drainage 
22. Environmental Agency Condition – Contaminated land remediation strategy 
23. Community Employment Plan 
24. Piling method statement 

 
Pre-Occupancy 

25. Noise Mitigation 
26. Environmental Agency Condition – Contaminated land verification report 
27. Environmental Agency Condition – SuDS Infiltration of surface water into ground 
28. Visibility splays 
29. Travel Plan 
30. Car parking spaces, turning spaces and roads 
31. Cycle parking 

 
Informatives 

1. Contaminated Land Informative 
2. Highway Informatives 
3. Superfast broadband – 30 plus dwellings 
4. Illustrative Drawings 
5. Planning Obligation 

 

8 P21/V1096/FUL - Recreation Ground, Cane Lane, Grove  
 
Councillors Ron Batstone and Ben Mabbett, local ward members, stood down from the 
committee for the duration of the item. 
 
The committee considered application P21/V1096/FUL for the reconstruction and 
enlargement of scout hall (as amended by plans and additional information received 24 
June 2021, 1 July 2021 and 8 September 2021). 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
Councillor Ben Mabbett, local ward member, spoke in support of the application. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 20 October 2021 

 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P21/V1096/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions; 
 
Standard 

1. Commencement of development within three years 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 

Pre-Commencement 
3. Details of materials to be submitted 
4. Surface water drainage scheme to be submitted 
5. Foul water drainage scheme to be submitted 
6. Tree protection details to be submitted 
7. Landscaping scheme to be submitted 
8. Phased contaminated land risk assessment to be submitted 

 
Pre-Occupancy 

9. Compliance with remediation report and submission of validation report 
10. Installation of bat box on site 

 
Compliance 

11. Restriction on usable floor space 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.17 pm 

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V2040/RM 

 SITE Care Home site Centre West Phase 
Kingsgrove Oxfordshire 

 PARISH GROVE 
 PROPOSAL Reserved Matters application for the 

construction of a 72bed care home (Use 
Class C2), with associated access, 
parking, landscaping, plant, and site 
infrastructure, pursuant to outline 
planning permission P19/V1269/FUL.  
Details submitted in accordance with 
conditions 8, 17, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 27, 
29, 30, 31, 33, 34, 35, 37, 38, 43, 48 and 
54. As amended by plans and 
information received 29 September 
2021, 28 October 2021, and 17 
December 2021. 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Andy Crawford 
Patrick O'Leary 

 APPLICANT Care UK 
 OFFICER Stuart Walker 

 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 To approve the Reserved Matters, subject to the following: 

 
 Condition: 

1.   Approved plans 
2.   Travel Plan implementation 
 
Informative:  
1.   Details pursuant to conditions 8, 17, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 27, 29, 30, 31, 33,  
      34, 35, 37, 38, 43, 47, 48 and 54 of outline planning permission  
      P19/V1269/FUL are agreed for this phase through the approval of the  
      Reserved Matters application. 
 
2.   The applicant is reminded of the obligation of compliance with the  
      relevant conditions on the outline application that apply to this phase  
      (e.g., CEMP & LEMP implementation). 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 This application was considered by committee on 7 December 2021 where it 

was resolved to defer the decision for further revision of the proposal. A copy 
of the original report is attached at Appendix 1. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V2040/RM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

 
1.2 The reasons for deferral related to the following: 

 

1. Concerns on the layout of car-parking spaces to serve the site. 

2. Concerns for public safety arising from the lack of a continuous 

pedestrian pavement on the external road outside the proposed 

development. 
 

1.3 In response the applicant has submitted a revised layout plan attached at 
Appendix 2.  This includes a continuous footway requested by committee and 
amends the orientation of car parking spaces, so they are parallel to the street. 
   

1.4 The changes to the scheme have been made in direct response to address 
comments raised by councillors at the committee.  To make way for the 
pedestrian footpath, parallel spaces result in the loss of two spaces.  The 
applicant (and the Crab Hill lead developer, St Modwen) has advised these 
spaces will not be replaced elsewhere on the wider Crab Hill site.  The total 
number of spaces for the proposal is therefore 32. 

 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
Responses received in relation to the submission of the revised layout are 
summarised below. A full copy of all the comments made can be seen online at 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 

 Wantage Town 
Council 

Objection: 

 Wantage Town Council is pleased to see that safety 
concerns have been addressed, but still have 
concerns about insufficient parking spaces, given 
there will be 48 members of staff at peak times. 
Information from The Department for Transport 
states that 75% of workers travel to work by car. 

 Wantage Town Council would like to see a 
pedestrian route marked out to show the route from 
the car park to the building. 

 

Residents No responses received. 
 

Oxfordshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

Objection: 

 Financial contribution towards expansion of Wantage 
PCN practices is required. (This is not material to the 
assessment of a Reserved Matters application). 

 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 

Transport: No objection. 

 The applicant has submitted amended plans in 
relation to the proposals, which show a continuous 
footway along the southern side of the access road 
adjacent to the site, together with car parking located 
parallel to the carriageway. The amended layout is 
acceptable. 

Page 17

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

 It is noted that there will be a reduction in kerbside 
parking (two spaces) from that previously proposed.  
As the development is not dependant on this parking 
provision, there is no objection in this regard. 

 It is noted that the number of cycle parking spaces 
within the site has been increased from 12 to 18.  
The details provided in relation to the proposed cycle 
shelters are acceptable. 

 

Lead Local Flood Authority: No further comment. 
 
Archaeology: No objection. 
 

Landscape 
Officer 

No objection. 
 

Drainage 
Engineer 

No further comment. 

Contaminated 
Land 

No further observations to make. 

Environmental 
Protection Team 

No objection subject to lighting proposed being secured by 
condition (the lighting plan is to be an approved drawing). 
 

Waste 
Management 
Team 

No comment. 

 

 

3.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
This update report should be read alongside the original report 
which is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

3.1 The reasons for deferral sought a review of layout of on street parking spaces 
to allow for a continuous footway on the south side of the access road.  The 
plans as amended are considered to fully address the concerns raised by the 
Planning Committee. 
 

3.2 The reduction of two parking spaces is acceptable to officers along with their 
parallel orientation.  The Highway Authority raises no objection. 
 

3.3 The request by the Town Council for a marked footway within the care home 
plot is not necessary in your officers’ opinion.  The Highway Authority considers 
the amended proposal is acceptable and raises no safety concerns. Such 
provision would also detract from the visual quality of the scheme.  It is also 
considered a refusal on this ground would not be defendable on appeal in 
terms of highway safety, given the short distance from parking spaces to the 
entrance of the building where users have direct and visible sight lines across 
the car parking area.   

 
 

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

4.0 CONCLUSION 

4.1 This application has been assessed against the development plan, the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and all other material planning 
considerations.  In considering the application, due regard has been given to the 
representations received from statutory and other consultees. These have been 
considered in assessing the overall scheme. 
 

4.2 The site is allocated in the adopted local plan and there is an extant outline 
planning permission on the site for up to 1500 dwellings with associated C2 
uses.  Reserved Matters have also been previously approved for adjoining 
parcels of development and are under construction. 
 

4.3 Reserved Matters details submitted in this application are acceptable.  Subject 
to the recommended conditions, the application should be approved. 

 

Author:          Stuart Walker 
Contact No:   01235 422600 
Email:            planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

APPLICATION NO. P21/V2040/RM 
SITE Care Home site, Centre West Phase, 

Kingsgrove, Oxfordshire 
PARISH GROVE 
PROPOSAL Reserved Matters application for the 

construction of a 72bed care home (Use 
Class C2), with associated access, 
parking, landscaping, plant, and site 
infrastructure, pursuant to outline 
planning permission P19/V1269/FUL.  
Details submitted in accordance with 
conditions 8, 17, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 27, 
29, 30, 31, 33, 34, 35, 37, 38, 43, 48 and 
54. As amended by plans and
information received 29 September 2021
and 28 October 2021.

WARD MEMBER(S) Andrew Crawford
Patrick O'Leary

APPLICANT Care UK
OFFICER Stuart Walker

RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the Reserved Matters, subject to the following: 

Condition: 
1. Approved plans
2. Travel Plan implementation

Informative: 
1. Details pursuant to conditions 8, 17, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 27, 29, 30, 31, 33,

34, 35, 37, 38, 43, 48 and 54 of outline planning permission
P19/V1269/FUL are agreed for this phase through the approval of the
Reserved Matters application.

2. The applicant is reminded of the obligation of compliance with the
relevant conditions on the outline application that apply to this phase
(e.g., CEMP & LEMP implementation).

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application comes to Planning Committee as Wantage Town Council 

object to the proposal. 

1.2 The application seeks Reserved Matters approval of layout, scale, 
appearance, access, and landscaping for the care home on the Crab Hill 

Page 66

Agenda Item 10 Appendix 1

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

strategic site.  It proposes a 72bed care home with associated parking, open 
space, and landscaping, on an approximately 0.45ha site located on the 
western side of the neighbourhood square (in the ‘Centre West’ parcel). A 
location plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The application also seeks to 
partially discharge numerous outline conditions (where relevant to the care 
home proposal). 
 

1.3 The 72bed care home is set over three storeys and will provide 
accommodation to residents with a range of care needs, from residential to full 
nursing care.  The ‘U’ shaped building is set to the north of the plot, with a 
private garden space and vehicle access from the south.  When operational, it 
will provide around 83 full time equivalent jobs.  34 car parking spaces are 
proposed, including two disabled spaces and two spaces for dual use as an 
ambulance bay and a delivery bay.  Secure and sheltered cycle store facilities 
are also proposed. 
 

1.4 The proposed development has been designed and developed to accord with 
the approved masterplan, site wide strategy and design guidance documents.  
The proposal has also been amended to take account of comments received 
from OCC highways, the drainage engineer, and the landscape officer.  All 
plans and supporting documents accompanying the application are available 
to view online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.  The latest layout plan and 
elevations are attached at Appendix 2. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the responses received is set out below.  Comments made can 

be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 

 Wantage Town 
Council 

October Amendment – Objection: 
 Wantage Town Council's concerns regarding the 

shared parking spaces remain. We believe that if 
these two facilities ultimately end up sharing parking 
spaces, then the use can't be determined individually 
and separately. To properly assess the suitability of 
the use of shared parking spaces for the care home 
use and community hall we feel a single assessment 
across both plans is necessary. 

 The concerns about pedestrian safety and 
connectivity have still not been satisfied. In the latest 
version the pedestrian footpath on the southern side 
does not appear complete - it is not continuous. 

 
September Amendment – Objection: 

 Concern there is a lack of parking spaces for the 
72bed care home. 

 Following review of the new information submitted by 
the applicant our concerns remain the same. The 
application states 36 parking spaces are available, 8 
of these are shared with the community building and 
it is difficult to see these will be easily available. One 

Page 67Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

is for an ambulance and one is a delivery bay. This 
would suggest 26 parking spaces are available for 
visitors and staff on the site of the care home. 

 There are 24 parking spaces (including 2 disabled 
spaces). We are concerned that the shared parking 
spaces are used in any calculation for parking 
provision for the care home as it is likely they will not 
be available - especially in peak periods of use for 
the community building. 

 Considering the number of employees (83 Full time 
equivalent as suggested in the planning statement) 
and the likely method of travel, Wantage Town 
Council still considers that there is not enough 
provision for parking for staff and visitors. 

 On reviewing more carefully the design of the shared 
car parking opposite the care home and parking 
within the care home we would suggest this is looked 
at again from a pedestrian safety point of view. There 
doesn't appear to be clear segregation or marked 
pedestrian routes. It is also considered that it would 
be potentially preferable to have the pedestrian path 
protected by a kerb rather than having the cars set 
back and we would like this to be re-considered. 

 
Original Plans – Objection: 

 Concern over the lack of parking spaces.   
 Support OCC objection. 

 
Residents No responses received. 

 
Wantage and 
Grove 
Campaign 
Group 

October Amendment – no further response received. 
 
September Amendment – Objection: 

 We continue to object to this application on the 
grounds of insufficient parking for residents and staff. 

 
Original Plans – Objection: 

 We object to this application on the grounds of 
insufficient parking for residents and staff.  72 units 
should have 72 parking spaces with the addition of 
spaces for staff without using spaces assigned to 
other buildings. 

 
Oxfordshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

October Amendment – no further response received. 
 
September Amendment – no further response received. 
 
Original Plans – Objection: 

Page 68Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

 Financial contribution towards expansion of Wantage 
PCN practices is required. (This is not material to the 
assessment of a Reserved Matters application). 

 
Oxfordshire 
County Council 

October Amendment 
Transport: No objection: 

 Following the submission of a Stage 1 Road Safety 
Audit undertaken in relation to the proposed access 
road adjacent to the site, the Audit Team have 
confirmed that the amended plans submitted within 
the designer’s response address the safety issues 
previously raised in relation to pedestrian 
connectivity. 

 
Lead Local Flood Authority: No objection. 
 
Archaeology: No objection. 
 
September Amendment 
Transport: Holding objection: 

 Pedestrian footways are required along both sides of 
the carriageway. 

 It is considered that the car parking provision is 
appropriate in this instance and it is noted that cycle 
parking demand will be monitored through the travel 
plan and increased if required. 

 The amended travel plan and CEMP are acceptable. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority: No objection. 
 
Archaeology: No objection. 
 
Original Plans 
Transport: Holding objection: 

 Revised swept path analysis required. 
 Revised access to be designed as a bell-mouth, not 

a crossover as shown. 
 Pedestrian footways are required along both sides of 

the carriageway. 
 Further evidence on car and cycle parking provision 

is required. 
 Revised Travel Plan and CEMP required. 

 
Lead Local Flood Authority: Holding objection: 

 Further information required on where the site will 
drain to. 

 
Archaeology: No objection. 
 

Page 69Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

Drainage 
Engineer 

October Amendment – No objection: 
 The technical notes dated 20 Sept and 12 Oct are 

considered to satisfactorily address previous 
comments. 

 
Original Plans – Holding objection: 

 Clarity and further information required on whether 
discharge rates accord with site wide drainage 
strategy. 

 
Thames Water October Amendment – no further response received. 

 
September Amendment – No objection. 
 
Original Plans – No objection: 

 The foul water condition can be discharged based on 
the information submitted. 

 
Environmental 
Health – 
Contamination 

October Amendment – no further comment. 
 
September Amendment – No objection: 

 No further observations to add following previous 
response. 

 
Original Plans – No objection: 

 The content of the ground investigation report 
satisfactorily addresses the requirements for 
submission of a Phase 2 comprehensive intrusive 
investigation. No significant contamination has been 
identified. 

 In respect of the land contamination assessments 
undertaken the application site would appear to be 
suitable for the proposed care home development.  

 No further contaminated land assessments are 
necessary for the care home development. 

 
Environmental 
Health – 
Protection 

October Amendment – no further comment. 
 
September Amendment – No objection. 
 
Original Plans – No objection: 

 So long as the mitigation measures proposed in the 
SLR report (SLR Ref: 402.40000.00020 Version No: 
1 June 2021) are implemented, conditions 27 and 29 
can be discharged. 

 
Landscape 
Officer 

October Amendment – No objection. 
 
September Amendment – No objection: 

Page 70Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

 The amended information has addressed previous 
comments. 

 
Original Plans – Holding objection: 

 Minor revisions to hard and soft landscape scheme 
required.   

 I think due to the nature of the site, wildflower 
meadows would not be appropriate, I suggest 
Emorsgate EL1 Flowering Lawn Mixture would be a 
suitable alternative.  

 I note the Visualisation indicated a green wall just 
south of the main entrance into the building but there 
are no climbing plants indicated on the Softworks 
plan to reflect this. Clarification of this feature is 
required.  

 If possible, some trees should be added to the 
planting areas south of the main car park. These are 
to break up the mass of the car park and add 
additional trees to the street scene. 

 
Urban Design 
Officer 

No response received. 

Waste 
Management 
Team 

October Amendment – No comment. 
 
Original Plans – No objection: 

 As the care home will use a private commercial 
waste collection rather than the council's household 
waste collection, no comment. 

 
 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P20/V3129/PEJ - Advice provided (25/02/2021) 

Construction of a 72bed care home (Use Class C2), with associated access, 
parking, landscaping, and site infrastructure. 
 
P19/V1269/FUL - Approved (22/08/2019) 
Variation of conditions 1(approved plans), 7(Housing Delivery Document), and 
17(phasing plan) of planning permission P17/V0652/FUL 
 
P18/V2992/RM - Approved (11/03/2019) 
Reserved Matters application for 174 dwellings (Phase 2B / Centre West) and 
approval of details in relation to this phase for conditions 4, 7, 9, 14, 18, 20, 21, 
22, 29, 32, 36, 37 attached to P13/V1764/O and P17/V0652/FUL.  As amended 
by plans received 8 February 2019. 
 
P18/V2787/RM - Approved (28/02/2019) 
Reserved Matters application for infrastructure works including internal roads, 
car parking, landscaping of open spaces and the civic square.  As amended by 
plans received 28 January 2019.  As amended by plans received 6 February 
2019. 

Page 71Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

 
P17/V3248/RM - Approved (02/05/2018) 
Reserved Matters application for infrastructure works including ground 
levelling, internal access road, service diversions and landscaping (as 
amended by plans and information received 20 March 2018). 
 
P17/V0652/FUL - Approved (27/11/2017) 
Variation of Conditions 1 (amended parameter plans), 33 (additional land to be 
included within the Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation) and 52 
(vehicle access) of Planning Permission P13/V1764/O (as amended by letter 
received 23 March 2017). 
 
P13/V1764/O - Approved (13/07/2015) 
Outline application for residential development of up to 1500 dwellings 
including new employment space (use class B1), a neighbourhood 
centre/community hub (use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, B1, C2, D1 and D2), 
new primary school, central park, ancillary areas (including allotments and 
sports pitches) with access off the A338 Grove Road and three accesses off 
the A417 Reading Road. Provision of a strategic link road between the A417 
and the A338 Road to be known as the Wantage Eastern Link Road (WELR). 
All matters reserved except means of access to the development and the 
WELR.  Additional information received as amplified by agent's covering letter 
dated 30th October 2013 and agent's e-mail dated 10th December 2013. 
 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 A Reserved Matters application is considered a new application for planning 

permission under the 2017 Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.  
The outline application was EIA development and was accompanied by an 
Environmental Statement (ES) and an addendum update statement, and the 
following areas of potential impact were addressed: landscape and visual 
impact; transport; historic environment; ecology and nature conservation; water 
resources and flood risk; noise; air quality; socio-economic impacts; cumulative 
effects and residual effects and mitigation. 
 

4.2 It is considered this Reserved Matters application falls within the ambit of the 
approved ES, and a further addendum is not required for this application. 
 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main issues in this case are: 

 
1. The principle of development 
2. Layout 

- Residential amenity 
3. Appearance and Scale 
4. Landscaping 
5. Access 
6. Technical matters 

- Parking 

Page 72Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

- Flood risk and drainage 
- Conditions 

 
5.2 The principle of development 

The site is allocated for development in the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031, Part 1 and outline permission for a housing led mixed use development, 
including Use Class C2, was granted in July 2015 with variations to parameter 
plans permitted in November 2017 and August 2019.  There are no material 
changes in planning policy and the established principle of the proposal 
remains acceptable. 
 

5.3 Layout 
The layout is acceptable and accords with the approved neighbourhood 
development brief.  The building has been designed / positioned to front public 
space with private amenity space in the centre, to provide a coherent 
environment for all users and a sense of enclosure.  The layout responds 
positively to principles of site design guidance.  The proposal accords with 
policy CP38. 
 

5.4 Residential amenity 
The layout provides an appropriate design response to existing dwellings on 
adjoining phases.  Proposed boundary treatments and external lighting are 
acceptable.  The impact on existing neighbours is acceptable and the proposal 
accords with policy DP23. 
 

5.5 Overall, the proposal is considered compliant with the site wide design 
strategy, adopted design guide principles and policy CP37. 
 

5.6 Appearance and Scale 
The proposed development is acceptable.  The impact of height was previously 
assessed under application P19/V1269/FUL and was found to be acceptable 
and the proposed building accords with the approved height parameter plan.  
Residential properties of three storeys have been approved as part of 
Reserved Matters for land to the west and south of the site.  The design of all 
the external elements of the proposal is considered to make a positive 
contribution to its appearance, with attractive contemporary and traditional 
design, form, and scale, together with the proposed materials, landscape 
treatment and the relationship of buildings within their environment. 
 

5.7 Landscaping 
A detailed landscaping scheme is submitted with the planning application.  The 
content of the scheme is acceptable, and the landscape officer has no 
objection to the amended proposal, with changes made to both hard and soft 
landscaping to address the landscape officer’s initial comments.  The proposal 
accords with policy CP44. 
 

5.8 Access 
The Highway Authority has assessed the amended proposal and raises no 
objection in respect of highway safety and vehicle ingress / egress or vehicle 
circulation within the site.  The proposal accords with policy DP16. 

Page 73Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

 
5.9 Technical Matters 

Parking 
There is a mix of on street parking (unallocated and shared with other 
neighbourhood centre users) and on plot parking to serve the development.  34 
new parking spaces are proposed.  Notwithstanding, concerns have been 
raised by the Town Council and local campaign group.  There is no specific or 
adopted guidance on parking ratios for C2 uses.  The Highway Authority has 
assessed the proposal on its own merits and raises no objection to the level of 
parking provision.  Officers also consider the provision is reasonable to meet 
the site’s operational needs when taking account of the accessible location of 
the development (adjacent to public transport facilities and within a 
neighbourhood centre, close to housing), staff on site at any one time (in theory 
up to 48 staff during the afternoon changeover between shifts), the opportunity 
for sustainable travel choices including cycling and walking (promoted through 
the travel plan) and the use of shared parking facilities adjacent to the site.  
Officers advise a refusal on grounds of insufficient parking would therefore be 
difficult to defend on appeal. 
 

5.10 In addition, secure and sheltered cycle parking is proposed on site supported 
with dedicated staff lockers and changing areas within the proposed care home 
building.  Such facilities will encourage sustainable travel patterns to the site.  
The total number of cycle parking spaces proposed is 12 and it is noted that 
the demand for cycle parking will be monitored as part of the Travel Plan and 
increased if required.  This is considered acceptable and accords with policies 
CP33, CP35 and CP37.  The implementation of the Travel Plan can be secured 
by condition. 
 

5.11 Flood Risk and drainage 
A sustainable drainage scheme has been submitted which is acceptable. The 
drainage engineer raised an initial holding objection as insufficient detail had 
been provided.  The applicant has since addressed this with a supporting 
technical note and the proposal is compliant with policy CP42. 
 

5.12 Conditions 
The application seeks to partially discharge numerous conditions on the outline 
permission that are directly related to this phase of development.  The details 
submitted pursuant to conditions 8 (RM drawings), 17 (Construction 
Environmental Management Plan), 19 (Energy strategy), 20 (Energy 
efficiency), 21 (landscaping), 23 (tree protection), 24 (landscape management), 
27 & 29 (noise mitigation), 30 (hours of use), 31 (Landscape and Ecological 
Management Plan), 33 (contamination), 34 (lighting), 35 (waste management), 
37 (sustainable drainage), 38 (drainage strategy), 43 (materials), 48 (access) 
and 54 (BREEAM certification) are acceptable. 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 This application has been assessed against the development plan, the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and all other material planning 
considerations.  In considering the application, due regard has been given to the 

Page 74Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

representations received from statutory and other consultees. These have been 
considered in assessing the overall scheme. 
 

6.2 The site is allocated in the adopted local plan and there is an extant outline 
planning permission on the site for up to 1500 dwellings with associated C2 
uses.  Reserved Matters have also been previously approved for adjoining 
parcels of development and are under construction. 
 

6.3 Reserved Matters details submitted in this application are acceptable.  Subject 
to the recommended conditions, the application should be approved. 

 
 The following planning policies have been considered: 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) Policies: 

 
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy 
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs 
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services 
CP15  -  Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area 
CP26  -  Accommodating current and future needs of the ageing population 
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP38  -  Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites 
CP39  -  The Historic Environment 
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction 
CP42  -  Flood Risk 
CP43  -  Natural Resources 
CP44  -  Landscape 
CP45  -  Green Infrastructure 
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity 
 

 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2) Policies: 
 
DP16 - Access 
DP17 – Transport Assessments and Travel Plans 
DP21 - External Lighting 
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity 
DP24 - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments 
DP25 - Noise Pollution 
DP26 - Air Quality 
DP27 - Land Affected By Contamination 
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling 
DP36 - Heritage Assets 
DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
 

 Neighbourhood Plan 
In 2016, the independent examiner inspecting the Wantage Neighbourhood 
Plan recommended that the plan shouldn’t proceed to a referendum. A revised 

Page 75Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 07 December 2021 

neighbourhood plan has yet to be submitted.  Accordingly, no weight can be 
given to this plan. 
 

 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD 
 Vale of White Horse Developer Contributions SPD  

 
 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken in account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equality 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 

 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990  
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006  
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 

 
Author:          Stuart Walker 
Contact No:   01235 422600 
Email:            planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

Page 76Page 30



Appendix 1

P
age 77

P
age 31



Appendix 2

P
age 78

P
age 32



P
age 79

P
age 33



P
age 80

P
age 34



P
age 81

P
age 35



P
age 82

P
age 36



P
age 83

P
age 37



Appendix 2

P
age 38



PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED BOUNDARY WALL
RAILING INFILL PANELS 1.5M HIGH

PROPOSED SPECIMEN SHRUB

RAISED PLANTER

PROPOSED SPECIMEN
CLIMBERS

PROPOSED TREE

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING

PROPOSED BULB PLANTING

PROPOSED FLOWERING LAWN

PROPOSED HEDGE PLANTING

PROPOSED DWARF WALL WITH
1.8M VERTICAL BAR RAILING

SINGLE GATE

PROPOSED PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVING TO PARKING BAYS

PROPOSED VEHICLE GRADE
MACADAM SURFACING

PROPOSED BUFF PAVING
FLAGS 400 X 400MM

PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING (LUCERNE SILVER)

PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING (SCANDINAVIAN PEARL)

PROPOSED BLOCK PAVING TO
CAR PARK AREA

PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN
HAZARD WARNING PAVING

PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN GRADE
MACADAM SURFACING

PROPOSED PLEACHED TREE
(APPROX 3M OVERALL HEIGHT
WITH 1.2M x 1.4M TRELLIS)

EXISTING/PROPOSED OFF-SITE
TREE

PROPOSED INTEGRATED BAT
BRICK (2NR)

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND SUDS
CRATES / GRAVEL SUB-BASE /
CONNECTIONS

SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED INTEGRATED BIRD
BOXES

PROPOSED WATER FEATURE

PROPOSED SEAT

PROPOSED OBELISK

PROPOSED BIRD BATH

PROPOSED INVERTEBRATE BOX

PROPOSED HEDGEHOG BOX

PROPOSED 1.8M VERTICAL BAR
RAILING

ENTRANCE SIGN

A

Substation

Service
parking

Managers Office

Hairdressers

Admin Store

Cafe

Maintenance

Store

CRM Office

Lounge

(62m²)

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 4
Bedroom 5

Bedroom 6
Bedroom 7

Bedroom 8

Bedroom 9 Bedroom 10

Bedroom 11

Bedroom 12

Bedroom 13

Bedroom 14

Bedroom 15

Bedroom 16

Bedroom 17

Bedroom 18

Bedroom 19

Bedroom 20

Bedroom 21

Bedroom 22

Dining Room

(82m²)

Store

Assisted

Bathroom

Hoist St

WC Nurse

Station

Drug
Store

WC

Gym

St

St

Comms

Cleaner St

Linen
Store

Admin Office

Store

Cinema

Activity/

Bar

Sluice

Reception

TV with narrow Shelving unit and storage

5000

50
00

35
51

4040

3000

47
75

W

E

G

W

E

G

W

E

G

W

E

G

W

E

G

W

E

G

W

E

D
D

1W

E

G

D
D

1
W

E

G

G
G

DRY RISER

ELECTRIC

METERS

/BT RISE

Water
x10

W

W

W

W

W

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

W

G GG

W

Sm

Sm

Sm

Sm

Sm

Sm

Sm

Sm

Sm

Hy

Hy

Hy

Hy

Hy

Hy

Hy

Hy

Hy
Hy

Hy

3.0m

3.0m

3.0m

St

St

Hy

v
v

v
vv v v v vv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

vvv

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v

v
v

v
v

v

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v v v v v vv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v v v v v v v v v v v v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

vvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v

v v v v v v v v v v v v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v

v v v v v v v v v v v

v
v

v
v

vvvvvvvvvvv

v v v v v
v

v
v

v
v

v v v v v v v v

v
v

v
v

v

vvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

vvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

vvvvvv
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v v
v

v
v

v

vvvvvvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v v v v v v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v v v v v v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

vvvvvv
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v v v v v v

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv
v

v
v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

vvvvv
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v v v v v v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
v

v
vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

v
v

vvv

ECCP

ECCP
ECCP

ECCP

ECCP

ECCP

ECCP

GB

A

A

LEGEND FOR ITEMS WITHIN SITE BOUNDARY

NOTES:
Site context taken from drawings:

- "Kingsgrove-Context-for-CareHome.dwg"
prepared by Atkins; and

- "CALA22350-11A-ex.dwg" prepared by Cala
Homes.

- Hedgehog boxes to be located at the base of
the native species rich hedgerow once
established.

- Composting facility for garden waste to be
confirmed one the care home opens.

Comments

N

0 2 4 6 8m 12 16 20

Metres 1:200 Scale Date

SAILORS BETHEL
HORATIO STREET

NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE
TYNE AND WEAR. NE1 2PE

T: 0191 261 1966
F: 0191 230 2346

40
2.

40
00

0.
00

00
1-

22
_1

01
_L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
G

EN
ER

AL
 A

R
R

AN
G

EM
EN

T_
R

EV
 1

2.
dw

g

www.slrconsulting.com

© This drawing and its content are the copyright of SLR Consulting Ltd and may not be reproduced or amended except by prior written permission. SLR Consulting Ltd accepts no liability for any amendments made by other persons.

402.40000.00001-22-101-Rev 12

1:200@A1 DECEMBER 2021

LANDSCAPE
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CARE UK
WANTAGE CARE HOME

WANTAGE

BIN STORE

SECURE CYCLE
PARKING (10NR)

AMBULANCE
BAY

DELIVERY
BAY

PRIVATE GATE ACCESS
TO COMMUNITY CENTRE

SHED

By Chk'd DateRev

RB
UPDATING THE NE PATIO
AREA TO MEET KWL
ARCHITECTS DRAWING

AC 26/10/201

MA
SIT LAYOUT UPDATES
DEV. COORDINATIONPL 13/11/202

RECEPTION

MA
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT
LAYOUT UPDATES08/03/213

PRIVATE GATE
ACCESS

1.5M HEDGE
AROUND
PARKING

WALL & RAILING TO CAR
PARK (1.5M) PROVIDES
DEFINED BOUNDARY

DWARF WALL & RAILING
(1.8M) TO SECURE

GARDEN BOUNDARY

CLIMBERS GROWN UP
SITE BOUNDARY FENCE

KEY VIEW FORMED
BETWEEN TREES TO

CARE HOME BUILDING

FORMAL
GARDEN

24 PARKING SPACES
PLUS 1 AMBULANCE

AND 1 DELIVERY

6 NR SHARED
SPACES

MA
ECOLOGY ENHANCEMENTS
UPDATED09/04/214

MA
INTERNAL BUILDING UPDATES

18/04/215

MA
UPDATES TO KEEY AND
ECOLOGY ENHANCEMENTS12/05/216

EJ
ADDING ENTRANCE SIGN

19/05/217

AC
RESPONDING TO PLANNERS:
TREES & CLIMBERS ADDED,
GRASS MIXES REVISED

EJ 17/09/218

AC SHARED SURFACING REMOVED
VEHICULAR ENTRANCEEJ 23/09/219

MA FOOTPATHS EXTENDED SOUTH
OF COMMUNITY ACCESS ROAD26/10/2110

MA CYCLE PARKING & CAR
PARKING UPDATEDPL 10/12/2111

CYCLE PARKING
(8NR.)

MA UNDERGROUND ATTENUATION
UPDATEDPL 16/12/2112

P
age 39

http://www.slrconsulting.com


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V1171/FUL 

 SITE Former Esso Research Centre Abingdon 
Road Milton Hill Abingdon, OX13 6BD 

 PARISH MILTON 
 

 PROPOSAL Full application for erection of 4no. 
commercial buildings for purposes within 
Classes B2 and B8 together with access 
and servicing arrangements, parking, 
landscaping, boundary treatment, 
gatehouse building, public art 
installation and associated works (as per 
amendments received 30th November 
2021 and Transport Assessment 
Addendum received 10 January 2022 
and additional and amended information 
received 18 January 2022). 
 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Janet Shelley 
Matthew Barber 

 APPLICANT Equation Properties Limited 
 OFFICER Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission is 

delegated to the head of planning subject to: 
 

1. A section 106 legal agreement 
A section 106 legal agreement with the Oxfordshire County Council being 
entered into to secure financial contributions towards local infrastructure. 
 

 2. The following planning conditions: 
 
Standard 
1. Commencement of development – 3 years 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 

 
Pre-commencement  
3. Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
4. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP) 
5. Biodiversity Offsetting (for 17.89 units) 
6. Surface Water Drainage 
7. Foul water drainage scheme 

Page 40

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V1171/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

8. Land Drainage (survey of boundary ditch and downstream culverts) 
9. Contaminated Land - Linked Conditions 
10. Cycle Parking Facilities 
11. Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) (incl. wheel washing 

facilities) 
12. Landscape Management Plan 
13. Tree Protection 
14. Community Employment plan (CEP) 
 
Pre-occupation  
15. Contaminated Land - Linked Conditions  
16. Access, Parking and Turning in Accordance with Specified Plan (incl. 

electric vehicle charging points) 
17. Travel Plans 
18. SUDS Compliance Report 
19. Water network upgrades / phasing plan 
20. Details of the Public Art Scheme 
21. Implementation of the mitigation measures in the Noise Assessment 

Report (Noise) 
 

Compliance  
22. Development in accordance with the Environmental Statement  
23. Implementation of the mitigation measures in the Operational Noise 

Management Plan (Noise) 
24. Environment Agency Condition – Contamination 
25. Lighting scheme 

 
Informatives 
1. Road Agreements Team (S278) 
2. Water mains crossing or close to the development 
3. Development located within 15m of Thames Waters underground 

assets 
4. Planning Obligations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is presented to planning committee due to an objection from 

Milton Parish Council.  
 

1.2 The application seeks full planning permission to redevelop the former Esso 
research centre with commercial buildings for purposes within Classes B2 
(general industrial) and B8 (storage or distribution) together with, access and 
servicing arrangements, parking, landscaping, boundary treatment, gatehouse 
building, public art installation and associated works.  The proposal originally 
sought permission for five buildings but has since been amended to four 
buildings of a total floorspace of 38,839 sqm (GIA) across the site. Further 
detail on this change is set out later in this section of the report. 
 

1.3 The site is located approximately 6 kilometres south of Abingdon and 2.5km 
west of Didcot, in open countryside for planning purposes and is not on the 
edge of a built-up area. The site is approximately 11.1 hectares in area and 
relatively level. The site is approximately 1km north of the North Wessex 
Downs Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 
 

1.4 The Site was previously occupied by a former Esso Research Centre (for fuels 
and lubricants) with all buildings and above ground structures being 
demolished to slab level in 2007. It is therefore previously developed land as 
defined in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The existing site 
comprises areas of hardstanding, access roads, a wide range of trees and 
woodland protected by a Tree Preservation Order and ephemeral areas with 
mosaic of habitats. 
 

1.5 The site is adjacent to Abingdon Road (A4130) with Featherbed Lane to the 
west. The site is bound by a Public Right of Way (ProW) (ref. 299/12/10) to the 
north and a variety of buildings and uses to the south (Inc. the Infineum Office 
building, Milton Hill Business and Technology Centre, Milton Hill House Hotel, 
and the Wise Owls Day Nursery).  Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site 
is via the Abingdon Road. 
 

1.6 The site location plan is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

1.7 Planning background 
1.8 The site was originally allocated for employment use within the Vale of White 

Horse Local Plan 2011, under Policy E12: Large Campus Sites. In the Vale of 
white Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, Core Policy 6 identifies the site as 
contributing to employment land needs and identifies the site as being 
allocated through saved Local Plan 2011 policy (E12).  
 

1.9 However, since Local Plan 2031 Part 1 adoption, the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan 2031 Part 2 considered the remaining saved policies of Local Plan 
2011 and whether they should be taken forward. Saved policy E12 was not 
taken forward as Core Policy 29 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 provides 
sufficient flexibility to enable appropriate unallocated existing employment 
sites to come forward. As a result, the site is no longer allocated in the 

Page 42



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

development plan. 
 

1.10 Amendments to the scheme 
Since submission of the application in May 2021, there have been several 
amendments submitted by the applicant to address technical issues raised by 
the landscape officer, drainage engineer, environmental protection officers, 
countryside officer, forestry officer, conservation officer, urban design officer 
and Oxfordshire County Council as Highway Authority. 
 

1.11 The latest amendments, submitted in December 2021 are:  
 

 Unit 1 – Building extent reduced by 20.5m from the eastern Site 
boundary to allow for strengthening of the landscape buffer; 

 

 Units 3A and 3B – Removal of both units to allow for strengthening of 
landscape buffer through additional tree and shrub planting on the 
southern Site boundary with Milton House Hotel. Overflow car parking 
provided in this location; 

 

 Unit 4 – Landscape buffer strengthened by 1m along western unit 
façade, with a greater extent of soft landscaping added to the southern 
and northern sectors of the yard; 
 

 Unit 5 – Building extent reduced on south-west façade by between 
1.7m and 3m to avoid Root Protection Areas of two trees. 

 
1.12 The proposed layout plan and elevations of the buildings are attached at 

Appendix 2. All other plans and technical documents are available to view 
online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the responses received to the current proposal is below. All 

comments made can be seen in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 

Milton Parish 
Council 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Objection, the amendments have not overcome the 
parish Council's previous objections and adds:  
 

 Whilst the further reduction in the overall floor 
space to be provided and consequent reduced 
impact on ecology constitute an improvement, the 
amended proposals still fail to overcome the 
objections 

 B2 use is inappropriate and unacceptable in this 
location 

 The increase on HGV traffic passing nearby 
residential properties at all hours will cause 
detriment to residents amenities. 

 The development, even as further amended, still 
leads to a significant net loss of green 

Page 43

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

infrastructure  

 The proposed entrance to the development in 
close proximity to the access to the existing 
business park and hotel would give rise to 
highway conditions detrimental to highway safety 
both for vehicles and pedestrians 

 
Comments received  
Objection, for the following reasons: 

 The proposed use of the site (especially the B2 
use) would harm the amenities of neighbouring 
properties and guests of nearby hotels in terms of 
noise and potential fumes.  

 The number of traffic movements to and from the 
site, particularly of HGVs, and particularly 
overnight, would be excessive and would be 
detrimental to the amenities of nearby residential 
properties and guests at the nearby hotels. 

 Impact on highway safety 

 Impact on pedestrian safety and public health 

 The development would lead to an unacceptable 
ecological impact. In particular it would lead to an 
unacceptable loss of protected trees. 

 

Steventon 
Parish Council 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Objection, the amendments have not overcome the 
parish Council's previous objections, and adds:  
 

 A site at Didcot would be more sustainable 

 Though the site connects to the A34 with its 
constant problems due to lack of capacity. 

 Steventon is already overwhelmed with traffic 
other than cars 

 Transport report only mentions HGV at peak 
hours 

 No provision has been made for cyclists who will 
be using this route via Steventon 

 Light and noise pollution from the site operating 
24 hours per day with traffic 

movements and reversing alarms will affect 
residents and wildlife in a wide area 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No comments received.  
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Objection, for the following reasons: 

 Over development of the site with insufficient 
screening. Its location will stand out and dominate 

Page 44



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

the area.  

 The traffic flows mentioned are excessive 
particularly during the night, disrupting the 
amenities of residents in the vicinity. 

 

Harwell Parish 
Council 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No comments received  
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Objection, for the following reasons: 

 None of the issues raised have been adequately 
addressed.  

 Surrounding roads are not suitable for the 
increase in large vehicles and therefore the 
application should not go ahead until the 
Rowstock Relief, Featherbed Lane, Milton Hill etc, 
projects have been decided upon and 
implemented 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Objection, for the following reasons: 

 The site is not classed as a Strategic Employment 
Site in the Local Plan Part 1. 

 The location is not sustainable in transport terms.  

 The site lacks quality pedestrian and cyclist links, 
to the site from any of the nearby villages. 

 There are no crossings, and the footpaths are not 
continuous on either side of the A4130 

 Light pollution 

 Previous approved applications limited height of 
buildings to 12m. These buildings are taller, up to 
17m 

 Diversions from A34 closures already lead to an 
increase in large lorries using the A4130 through 
Rowstock, leading to complaints from residents 
about speed, noise, pollution, possible damage to 
property and lack of sleep) 

 Highways England says HGVs should not be 
diverted from the A34 along the A4130 

 Traffic modelling: Serious concerns over junction 
capacity as there are a significant number of on 
road cyclists using this area in peak hours due to 
inadequate alternative provision and modelling 
does not capture the capacity-reducing effect of 
this. 

 Should the development be permitted, traffic 
calming measures will be required, 
safe crossings and pavements should be included 
for pedestrians, cycle lanes should be provided, 

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

and speed limits should be lowered so that the 
A4130 between Milton Interchange and the site is 
a 30 mph zone 

 All traffic to and from the site should be routed via 
Milton Interchange and not through Rowstock. 

East Hendred 
Parish Council 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Objection, the amendments have not overcome the 
parish Council's previous objections and adds: 
 
 

 The application, if approved, would lead to a loss 
of amenity for recreational use. 

 The public footpath on the northern boundary of 
the site will be adversely affected by the proposal. 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No comments received  
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Objection, for the following reasons: 

 The site is not allocated as a Strategic 
Employment Site in the LPP1. The site is 
therefore an unallocated site within the open 
countryside.  

 The Site for the proposed development is not in or 
on the edge of a Market Town, which can support 
the most sustainable development through the 
level of facilities & services, or Local Service 
Centres. The proposal is contrary to the 
Settlement Hierarchy Policy CP3 in the LPP1 

 There is sufficient allocated and safeguarded 
employment land in South-East Vale sub area to 
meet employment needs up to 2031 

 The proposals do not comply with Policy CP6 of 
the LPP1 

 The proposal does not comply with CP7, CP15 
and CP28 of the LPP1 

 The transport assessment does not demonstrate 
sufficient mitigating measures to comply with 
Policies CP33 and CP34 of the LPP1 

 The proposals, by their location, siting, scale & 
nature, would have an adverse impact on 
Environmental Protection Policies, which would 
outweigh the economic benefits of the proposals 
in this location 

 The economic benefits of the proposals at Milton 
Hill are outweighed by being contrary to LPP1 
Policies 
 

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

Chilton Parish 
Council  

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Objection,  

 the amendments do not change the Parish 
Council's comments on this application. 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Objection, for the following reasons: 

 Impact on highway safety due to increased 
number of large articulated lorries exiting and 
joining the A34 via the Chilton interchange. 

 Effect of noise and pollution from the increased 
number of HGVs 

 The applicant claims that the effect of noise and 
pollution from the increased number of HGV s will 
be negligible, this seems very unlikely. 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No comments received  
 

Residents / 
Local 
Businesses / 
Rowstock 
Residents 
Association 

During the assessment process and re-consultations 
carried out, objections have been received from 104 
respondents, raising the following concerns: 
 
Re-consultation (December 2021) 

 Remain concerned about traffic impacts and 
impact on the highway network 

 Improvements to infrastructure required. 

 All HGV traffic to be diverted to Milton Interchange 
to access the A34 and not use Chilton 
Interchange 

 The scale of the proposal is inappropriate in this 
location 

 The quality of life will be blighted by this 
development 

 Impact on character of the area remains adverse 

 Impact on residential amenity remains adverse 

 Noise, dust, fumes and disturbance 

 Whilst the proposed amendments addressed in-
part concerns regarding the potential adverse 
visual impact of units 3a and 3b, no regard was 
paid  

 to the wider potential adverse impact of the 
proposed development and particularly units 4 
and 5 

 The relationship between the application site and 
the hotel and its grounds is set to change 
materially despite the amendments made 

 Visually and operationally, the proposed 
employment buildings are at significant odds with 

Page 47



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

the hotel characteristics and use 

 The proposal is considered to be in conflict with 
paragraph 111 of the NPPF and local transport 
policies CP33 LPP1 and DP16 LPP2 

 Operational Noise Management Plan completely 
ignores the concerns of residents regarding the 
noise generated by thousands of daily HGV 
movements on local roads for the first or final part 
of their journey 

 Only when the warehouses are occupied and 
operational will we truly know the true impact on 
Milton House Hotel and the nearby residential 
properties 

 The proposal will clearly have an impact on the 
consistency of high levels of noise and a major 
impact on mental health due to the generated 
level of traffic and will turn an infrequent nuisance 
into a permanent and intolerable impact on 
resident’s lives 

 Chopping down mature trees to replace with 
saplings elsewhere is a convenient abuse of 
planning 

 The scoping exercises has not been completed in 
a transparent fashion which will enable interested 
parties to understand the application and its 
effects 

 TAA report (10th January 2022), which has 
numerous drafting errors suggests was completed 
in haste and is possibly incomplete, attempts to 
minimise the impact of traffic from the site through 
use of questionable numbers leading to minimal 
mitigation measures and therefore cost 

 A petition with 1,100 (as of 27th January 2022) 
signatures has also been submitted by the 
association reiterating the points above. 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 

 Traffic data and modelling is outdated 

 Amendments have not addressed the issue 
regarding traffic impacts 

 Significant increase in traffic and queues  

 Adverse ecological impacts 

 Lack of cycle links 

 Noise and disturbance to nearby residents, 
particularly during the night 

 Overdevelopment of the site 

 Warehousing not appropriate in this location, and 
no need for this  

 Parking provision inadequate 

Page 48



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 Impact on highway safety 

 Light pollution 

 Amendments have not gone far enough to reduce 
building heights and density 

 Harmful to rural character of the area 

 Loss of trees and impact on biodiversity 

 The TA impact assessment work to support 
development proposal does provide a 
comprehensive assessment 

 The analysis in the LVIA underplays the true 
effects of the development (in terms of the visual 
impact upon the immediate and surrounding area) 

 There are technical discrepancies in the in the 
landscape and visual ratings presented in the 
submitted LVIA, although limited, these will result 
in fundamental differences in the outcome of the 
assessment 

 The applicant has failed to fully address through 
this amended scheme the concerns 

 Raised before, and largely focussed upon seeking 
to address identified shortcomings in the technical 
submissions 

 The A34 is regularly closed due to accidents and 
roadworks, sometimes overnight. The plans do 
not include any detail on the arrangements of 
HGV arrivals and departures in these 
circumstances 

 The proposal has not met requirement 1 or 3 
under Core Policy 28 

 Air Quality - a receptor has resulted in a moderate 
impact within the AQMA which the applicant 
considers to be theoretical and acceptable. 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 

 Increase in traffic and impact on highway safety 

 Impact on the amenities of residents from noise, 
speed, vibrations and disturbance from additional 
traffic, particularly during the night 

 Increase in pollution and impact on air quality 

 inadequate levels of visibility and capacity of the 
access to accommodate the development traffic; 

 Milton Hill is not well linked up to cycle networks 
and bus networks 

 Road improvements required 

 Hours of operation 

 New buildings unnecessary 

 Environmental impact in AONB 

 Impact on local independent businesses 

 Inappropriate location for distribution centre 

Page 49



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 Potential damage to property through increase of 
HGVs 

 Impact on health and well-being of nearby 
residents 

 Concerns regarding consultation process 

 Does not go far enough to address sustainability 
and impact on climate change 

 Size and scale of development, overdevelopment 
of the site 

 Loss of trees and vegetation 

 Harm to the rural character of the area 

 Shared access with other businesses may need to 
be closed for a temporary period during the 
construction works- this would be unacceptable 

 Proposed mitigation measures in the submitted 
technical reports (including 2.0m acoustic fence) 
would provide an inadequate level of protection 

 This large distribution centre is not well suited to 
this location due to the local road system, the 
commercial character of the area, and the 
availability of better positioned sites for this type of 
business in the local area 

 The applicant has failed to address matters raised 
by officers in pre-application advice 

 There are discrepancies between the “sensitive 
receptors” identified in various technical 
documents 

 Height, scale and massing are out of character 
and represent an overdevelopment of the site 

 The proposed unit 3b is too close to the Hotel 
building and its curtilage 

 The proposed development will materially change 
the relationship between the Esso site and the 
hotel 

 It is not clear if the potential noise transmission 
was considered in full 

 full consideration should be given to the potential 
for revised access arrangements  

 The development of a major distribution and 
logistics hub cannot be said to be meeting local 
needs and supporting facilities 

 The site is far removed from Milton and no 
facilities are close to the site 

 The development is not consistent with the 
‘Science Vale’ concept 

 The proposal does not comply with Policy CP3 of 
the LPP1 

 The proposal will have a detrimental effect on the 
amenities of nearby residents from increase in 

Page 50



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

traffic and type of traffic, causing noise and 
disturbance 

 Lack of mitigation measures 

 Impact on highway safety 

 Light pollution 

 Scale and height of proposed buildings not in 
keeping with the character of the area 

 The proposal does not comply with Policy CP28 of 
the LPP1 

 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
– Transport 
Development 
Control 

Re-consultation (January 2022) 
No objection subject to conditions and financial 
contributions:  

 

 Their latest comments are attached at Appendix 3 
 
Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Objection  

 Appropriate contributions to strategic highway 
schemes 

 Car and cycle parking provision levels uncertain 
due to precise site class use split 

 Appropriate upgrades to existing footway 
provisions along A4130  

 Cycle/footway links within site to be widened 
appropriately and internal missing links to be 
addressed  

 Delivery of 3m wide cycleway connection from the 
site to Featherbed Lane and Byway 299/12/10  

 Cycle/footway provision along the A4130  

 Review distribution to the south of the site as will 
have impact on validity of the modelling 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No comments received  
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Objection 

 Car and cycle parking provision levels uncertain 
due to precise site class use split 

 Appropriate upgrades to existing footway 
provisions along A4130  

 Cycle/footway links within site to be widened 
appropriately and internal missing links to be 
addressed  

 3m wide cycleway connection from the site to 
Featherbed Lane and Byway 299/12/10  

 Cycle/footway provision along the A4130  

 Review distribution to the south of the site as will 

Page 51



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

have impact on validity of the modelling 
 
 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
– Lead Local 
Flood Authority  

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Objection  

 The use of pumps does not appear necessary so 
must be justified. 

 The run-off is shown as being based on existing 
drainage rates 
 

Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No further comments received  
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Objection: 

 Full calculations for the site’s drainage are 
required. 

 Use of a run-off rate greater than the greenfield 
rate must be justified. 

 Responsibility for maintenance and the details of 
the maintenance are required. 

 The use of pumping for drainage is generally 
unacceptable and can only be permitted when 
drainage by gravity is not possible. 

 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
– Archaeology  

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No comments received  
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection 
 

Highways 
England 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No objection 
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection 
 

Conservation 
Officer 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection  
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No objection 
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 

Page 52



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

Holding Objection 

 There are potential negative low-level impacts 
caused by Unit 3 to the significance of Milton Hill 
House Hotel which has been identified as a non-
designated heritage asset 

 

Countryside 
Officer 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions on: 

 Construction environmental management plan 
(CEMP) 

 Biodiversity enhancement plan (BEP) 

 Biodiversity offsetting 
 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Holding objection: 

 Clarification required over the GCN survey and 
HIS assessment 

 Additional bat surveys are required  

 The biodiversity metric assessment to be 
reviewed 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Holding objection: 

 Insufficient information submitted to fully assess 
the ecological impacts of the development  
 

Drainage 
Engineer 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions on: 

 Detailed sustainable drainage scheme 

 SUDs compliance report 

 Detailed foul drainage scheme 

 Survey and inspection  
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Holding objection 

 Further survey work and calculations required to 
be undertaken and submitted. 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Holding objection 

 Further survey work and calculations required to 
be undertaken and submitted. SUDs to be 
incorporated within the scheme 
 

Forestry officer Re-consultation (January 2022) 
No objection, subject to condition: 

 Tree Protection Plan 
 

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Holding objection 

 The proposal to be further redesigned to allow for 
the retention of more protected trees throughout 
the site, development removed from the RPA of 
trees to be retained and more space be provided 
for suitable tree planting to be implemented on the 
site. 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Holding objection 

 The proposal to be further redesigned to allow for 
the retention of more protected trees throughout 
the site, development removed from the RPA of 
trees to be retained and more space be provided 
for suitable tree planting to be implemented on the 
site. 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
Holding objection 

 The proposal to be redesigned to allow for the 
retention of more protected trees throughout the 
site, development removed from the RPA of trees 
to be retained and more space be provided for 
suitable tree planting to be implemented on the 
site. 
 

Air Quality  Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions on securing: 

 Mitigation as set out in air quality report 

 On-site eclectic vehicle charging points 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions for: 

 On-site eclectic vehicle charging points 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
Objection:  

 Impact on Marcham AQMA.  

 Modelled impacts at this site to be reflected 
accurately and include modelling for a street 
canyon and accurate representation of traffic 
speeds. 
 

Contaminated 
Land 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions:  

 Phased contaminated land risk assessment 

 Contaminated land informative 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

No objection, subject to conditions:  

 Phased contaminated land risk assessment 

 Contaminated land informative 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions:  

 Phased contaminated land risk assessment 

 Contaminated land informative 
 

Environmental 
Health 
Protection Team 

Re-consultation (January 2022) 
No objection, subject to conditions: 

 Full implementation of mitigation measures 
identified in acoustic report and in the Operational 
Noise Management Plan (December 2021) 

 Restriction on the use of vehicle reversing alarms 
on the site  

 
Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions: 

 Full implementation of mitigation measures 
identified in acoustic report 

 Restriction on the use of vehicle reversing alarms 
on the site 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No additional observations 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection, subject to conditions: 

 Full implementation of mitigation measures 
identified in acoustic report 

 

Landscape 
Architect 

Re-consultation (January 2022) 
No objection: 

 I do not consider that the landscape harm caused 
by the proposals would be sufficient to merit a 
reason for refusal on landscape grounds.   

 
Re-consultation (January 2022) 
Holding objection: 

 There is some improvement to the scheme, by 
removing two units, however in overall, the 
proposed changes do not address satisfactorily 
previous comments 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Holding objection: 

 Limited changes made to layout which do not 
address previous comments 

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Holding objection: 

 Overdevelopment of the site with inadequate 
space for mitigation 
 

Environment 
Agency 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to the following conditions: 

 Potential contamination and remediation strategy 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No objection, subject to the following conditions: 

 Potential contamination and remediation strategy 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection, subject to the following conditions: 

 Potential contamination and remediation strategy 
 

Thames Water Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to previous conditions 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No objection, subject to previous conditions 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection, subject to condition: 

 No occupation until confirmation has been 
provided that either:- all water network upgrades 
required to accommodate the additional flows to 
serve the development have been completed; or- 
a development and infrastructure phasing plan 
has been agreed with Thames Water to allow the 
development to be occupied.  

 Where a development and infrastructure phasing 
plan is agreed no occupation shall take place 
other than in accordance with the agreed 
development and infrastructure phasing plan. 
 

Historic England 
(South East)  
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No view  
 
Re-consultation ()August 2021) 
No view  
 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No view 

On the basis of the information available to date, 
in our view you do not need to notify or consult us 
on this application under the relevant statutory 
provisions. 

Page 56



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 
 

Natural England  
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
Natural England has no comments to make on this 
application.    
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
Natural England has no comments to make on this 
application.    

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
Natural England has no comments to make on this 
application.    
 
 

North Wessex 
Downs Area of 
Outstanding 
Natural Beauty 
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No comments received 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No comments received 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No comments received 
 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
- Countryside 
Access 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No comments received 
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No comments received 

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 
No comments received 
 

SGN Plant 
Protection Team  
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
 Our records show those cables owned by SSE 

Telecoms. Service cables, etc. may not be shown but 
their presence should be anticipated. No warranties 
are therefore given in respect of it. 

 They also provide indications of electric cables owned 
by other IDNO, or otherwise privately owned, which 
may be present in this area. This information is not 
information of SSE Telecoms and SSE Telecoms is 
unable to verify this information or to confirm whether 
it is accurate or complete. 

 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 

 Our records show those cables owned by SSE 
Telecoms. Service cables, etc. may not be shown 
but their presence should be anticipated. No 
warranties are therefore given in respect of it. 

Page 57



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 They also provide indications of electric cables 
owned by other IDNO, or otherwise privately 
owned, which may be present in this area. This 
information is not information of SSE Telecoms 
and SSE Telecoms is unable to verify this 
information or to confirm whether it is accurate or 
complete. 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
 Our records show those cables owned by SSE 

Telecoms. Service cables, etc. may not be shown 
but their presence should be anticipated. No 
warranties are therefore given in respect of it. 

 They also provide indications of electric cables 
owned by other IDNO, or otherwise privately 
owned, which may be present in this area. This 
information is not information of SSE Telecoms 
and SSE Telecoms is unable to verify this 
information or to confirm whether it is accurate or 
complete. 

 

Waste 
Management 
Officer (District 
Council)  
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No comments 
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
No comments 
 

Urban Design 
Officer (South 
and Vale)  
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No comments received 
 
Re-consultation (September 2021) 
No comments received  

 
First Consultation (May 2021) 

 Further landscaping should be proposed to soften 
the overall development and the impact of parking 
(Milton Park is a good example of successful 
landscaping strategy). Wherever trees are 
proposed to soften the impact of parking, it is also 
important to make sure that these have enough 
room to establish themselves 

 Consider porous paving for large areas of parking  
 Waste and recycling points should be 

conveniently located for the users and also for the 
efficient removal of the materials by collection 
vehicles (Principle DG100 of the Vale Design 
Guide) - Applicants are encouraged to attain the 
BRE s Environmental Assessment Method 
(BREEAM) rating of Excellent (Principle DG 101 
of the Vale Design Guide). 

Page 58



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 Consider green roofs  
 Mesh fencing could be screening visually via 

landscaping 
 

Economic 
Development  
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection, subject to condition to secure: 

 Community Employment Plan  
 
Re-consultation (August 2021) 
No objection, subject to condition: 

 Community Employment Plan  
 

First Consultation (May 2021) 
No objection, subject to condition:  

 Community Employment Plan  
 

Didcot Garden 
Town Team  

Comments received (October 2021) 

 The Didcot Garden Town team note the economic 
benefits of the proposed development but also 
note the concerns of residents about the 
environmental impact 

 The Didcot Garden Town team supports the 
comments made by the countryside officer, 
environmental protection officer and conservation 
officer 

 Provides summary of the smart community 
principles and ideas from Didcot Garden Town 
Delivery Plan 
 

Planning Policy 
(Vale of White 
Horse District 
Council) 
 

Re-consultation (December 2021) 
No objection  

 
Comments (August 2021) 
No objection 
 

 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 P11/V2565/EX - Approved (22/12/2011) 
Application to extend the time limit of Outline Planning Permission 
06/01200/OUT, for 'Redevelopment of site involving demolition of all buildings, 
removal of hardstandings and remediation of the site, for 280, 957 sqft/26,102 
sqm of floorspace comprising 134,333 sqft/12,480 sqm B1 office, 144,624 
sqft/13,436 sqm B2/B8 industrial, warehousing and distribution. Associated 
supporting facilities including a 2,000 sqft/186 sqm A3 cafe, A1 shop and 
associated car parking spaces.' 
 
P06/V1200/O - Approved (07/11/2006) 
Redevelopment of site involving demolition of all buildings, removal of 
hardstandings and remediation of the site, for 280, 957 sqft/26,102 sqm of 
floorspace comprising 134,333 sqft/12,480 sqm B1 office, 144,624 sqft/13,436 

Page 59

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P11/V2565/EX
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P06/V1200/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

sqm B2/B8 industrial, warehousing and distribution. Associated supporting 
facilities including a 2,000 sqft/186 sqm A3 cafe, A1 shop and associated car 
parking spaces. 
 

3.2 Pre-application History 
P20/V2749/PEJ - Advice provided (15/12/2020) 
Outline planning application for erection of buildings for use within Class E 
(light industrial), Class B2 and Class B8 along with access and servicing 
arrangements, car parking, landscaping and associated works. 
(Follow up to P20/V0293/PEJ)   
 
P20/V0293/PEJ - Advice provided (13/03/2020) 
Outline planning application for employment development (Classes B1c, B2 
and B8) including access with all other matters reserved 

 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

4.1 The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) and 
addendums. These are available to view online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  
 

4.2 Mitigation measures have been identified and designed into the proposed 
development to reduce potentially significant adverse effects where possible. 
These include preparation of and adherence to: 
 

- Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
- Construction Method Statement 
- Construction Traffic Plan 
- Tree Survey Report 
- Tree Protection Plan 
- Timing of habitat clearance (if required) 
- Acquirement of bat mitigation and compensation licences (if required) 
- Biodiversity offsetting contributions; and 
- Landscape and Ecological Management Plan 
- Framework Travel Plan 
- Financial contributions to highway infrastructure (via the S.106 and 
S.278 agreements) 
  

4.3 The latest amendments to the proposal do not change the conclusions of the 
ES or the identified mitigation. 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main issues are: 

 Principle of development  

 Traffic and highway safety 

 Landscape impact 

 Biodiversity 

 Residential amenity 
- Noise 
- Air Quality 
- Contaminated land 

Page 60

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V2749/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V0293/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 Flood risk and drainage 
- Foul water 
- Water supply 

 Historic environment 
- Heritage assets 
- Archaeology 
- Energy and sustainability 

 Urban Design 
- Energy and sustainability  

 Other considerations 
- Community Employment Plan 
- Public art 

 Financial contribution requests 
- Community Infrastructure Levy 
- Legal agreement s106 (agreement) 

 
5.2 Principle of development 
5.3 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

applications for planning permission to be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, 
so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations. 
The development plan for this proposal comprises the adopted Local Plan 
2031 Part 1 (LPP1) and the adopted Local Plan 2031 part 2 (LPP2).  There is 
currently no neighbourhood plan for Milton. 
 

5.4 As set out in the introduction the site is not allocated in the development plan.  
It therefore falls to be considered under Core Policies 28 and 29 of LPP1 
which provide the flexibility to enable other employment sites, that are not 
allocated in Core Policy 6, to come forward where it can be demonstrated they 
accord with the development plan as a whole. This is supported by the 
National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 81).  
 

5.5 Core Policy 29 -Change of Use of Existing Employment Land and Premises 
would apply to this site if it is considered that the site is an existing 
employment site. The council are, however, aware that employment use on 
the site ceased in 2000 and it has been cleared of any structures in 2005. The 
proposal therefore falls under Core Policy 28 - New Employment Development 
on Unallocated Sites. 
 

5.6 This policy (when taken as a whole) sets out that proposals for new 
employment development (Use Classes B1, B2 or B8) will be supported on 
unallocated sites in or on the edge of, the built-up area of Market Towns, 
Local Service Centres and Larger and Smaller Villages provided that the 
benefits are not outweighed by any harmful impacts, taking into account the 
following:  
 

(i) the effect on the amenity of nearby residents and occupiers  
 

Page 61



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

(ii) the provision of safe site access for pedestrians and cyclists and for all 
types of vehicles likely to visit the sites, and measures to promote the 
use of sustainable modes of transport where possible, and 
 

(iii) the scale, nature and appearance of the employment development and 
its relationship with the local townscape and/ or landscape character 

 
5.7 The site lies in open countryside for planning purposes and is not on the edge 

of a built-up area, as such the latter part of Core Policy 28 also applies which 
states: 
 
In the rural areas the re-use, conversion or adaptation of suitable existing 
buildings for employment will also be supported subject to criteria (i)-(iii) where 
applicable. Other rural proposals will be supported, provided that, in addition 
to criteria (i)-(iii) where applicable:  
 

(iv) the proposal cannot reasonably be accommodated on employment 
land identified as vacant or developable, and  

 
(v) it can be demonstrated that the proposal will benefit the local economy 

and will not undermine the delivery of the strategic employment 
allocations. 

 
5.8 The applicant has provided a Market Report (March 2021) and an Economic 

Benefits Statement (April 2021) to demonstrate that the proposal cannot be 
accommodated on employment land elsewhere and that it does not 
undermine the delivery of other strategic employment allocations of the Local 
Plan. Both documents were assessed by the Council’s Economic 
Development Team and the Policy Team.  
 

5.9 In their comments the Economic Development Team state that “economic 
report provides additional comprehensive information to support the economic 
benefits to the area and Oxfordshire which highlights an accelerated shift to e-
commerce as a result of COVID-19 and Brexit resulting in increased demand 
in the industrial sector for storage and logistics. There is evidence showing 
how the development will provide relevant employment opportunities for the 
local area and Oxfordshire and potentially creates an additional 600-1200 
jobs”. 
 

5.10 The Planning Policy Team consider that the submitted Market Report is a 
robust and sound basis on which to determine whether the proposals are 
consistent with policy CP28. It was also stated that “the Market Report 
highlights continued and growing demand for high quality, well located, 
logistics floorspace (ranging from large regional logistics centres to smaller 
urban depots for last-mile delivery services), particularly along the A34 
corridor.”  
 

5.11 The report indicates that supply of suitable accommodation for B8/logistics 
uses (especially accommodation which services the mid and big box logistics 
sectors) is currently limited, with only two available Grade A speculative 

Page 62



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

industrial/warehouse units in Didcot and limited availability elsewhere in the 
locality. 
 

5.12 The report also examines the potential of the strategic employment allocations 
identified in the Vale Local Plan 2031 (Part 1) to accommodate the type/scale 
of industrial uses proposed for the Milton Hill site. It explains why there is little 
scope to accommodate these uses as part of the planned development 
schemes at Giant, Didcot and Signia Park, Didcot (the former Didcot A Power 
Station). 
 

5.13 Both, the Planning Policy Team and the Economic Development Team 
conclude that it has been satisfactorily demonstrated that: 
 

 there is no available or developable land that could accommodate the 
development proposals. 

 the proposal will not prejudice the delivery of any of the strategic 
employment allocations, and 

 the proposals will bring benefits to the local economy. 
 

Consequently, the application proposal is considered consistent with criteria 
(iv) and (v) of Core Policy 28 of the Vale Local Plan 2031 (Part 1). 
 

5.14 Therefore, the principle of the proposed development is acceptable, subject to 
the remaining criteria (i) to (iii) of the Policy CP28 being met. The proposal is 
assessed against these requirements and the Development Plan when taken 
as a whole, below. 
 

5.15 Traffic and Highway Safety 

5.16 Policy CP33 of LPP1 actively seeks to ensure that the impacts of new 
development on the strategic and local road network are minimised, to ensure 
that developments are designed in a way to promote sustainable transport 
access and to promote and support improvements to the network that 
increase safety and improve air quality.   
 

5.17 Policy CP35 of LPP1 promotes public transport, cycling and walking and 
together with policy DP17 of LPP2 requires proposals for major developments 
to be supported by a Transport Assessment in accordance with OCC 
guidance.  
 

5.18 Policy DP16 of LPP2 requires evidence that adequate provision will be made 
for loading, unloading, circulation, servicing and vehicle turning as well as it 
requires evidence to demonstrate that acceptable off-site improvements to 
highway infrastructure can be secured where these are not adequate to 
service the development. 
 

5.19 The application is supported with a Transport Assessment and addendum 
reports which have been assessed by the Local Highway Authority (LHA). 
Notwithstanding, much local concern has been raised on traffic generation 
and its impact upon the local highway network and residents, including initial 
objections from the LHA.  

Page 63



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.20 In response, the Applicant has submitted a further Transport Assessment 
Addendum, TAA4 and the LHA’s latest comments in reply are attached at 
Appendix 3. 
 

5.21 Trip Distribution & Generation 
5.22 The LHA initially raised concern with the original Transport Assessment (TA) 

assumption that Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV) movements associated with 
the site were from/towards the direction of Milton Interchange (79.7%), with a 
reduced figure from/towards the direction of Rowstock Roundabout/Chilton 
Interchange (20.3%). Subsequently, this has been re-visited and amended 
distribution figures of 45% (Milton Interchange) and 55% (Rowstock 
Roundabout/Chilton Interchange) at the respective key junctions have been 
submitted. These assumptions are accepted by the LHA as a fair distribution 
of movements on the network. 
 

5.23 The total numbers of all vehicles generated by the development during the AM 
and PM peaks is 123 and 98 respectively. This level of trips is considered 
acceptable in the Local Highway Authority’s assessment.  
 

5.24 With regard to HGV movements, the main focus of concern is at the Rowstock 
Roundabout. The LHA were also primarily concerned with movements during 
the respective AM and PM peak times through this junction and analysis 
undertaken on the impact of increase in HGV movements during these 
respective times. It can be deduced from the submitted data that there are 11 
and 3 additional HGV movements at the junction during the AM and PM 
peaks.  This addition on the network is assessed to be acceptable by the LHA. 
 

5.25 Modelling and mitigation 
5.26 Concern has been raised on transport modelling, and the LHA were of the 

view that the impact on the Rowstock Roundabout would be greater than 
originally indicated by the applicant. The modelling for the proposal has 
therefore been revised and updated through the submission of a TA 
Addendum and has been accepted by the LHA. 
 

5.27 The latest assessment (dated January 2022) has indicated that without 
mitigation the proposal would be detrimental to the local network, particularly 
in the following locations: 
 

 Trenchard Ave/A4130. 

 Featherbed Lane/A417. 

 A4130/High Street (Steventon Lights). 

 Milton Interchange; and 

 Rowstock Roundabout. 
 
Financial contributions are therefore sought to mitigate the impact of the 
proposal. The level of contribution has been discussed and agreed between 
the LHA and the applicant, and satisfactorily addresses the impact of the 
proposal on the local highway network. 
 
 

Page 64



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.28 In addition, the key junctions of Rowstock Roundabout and Steventon Lights 
Junction require further detailed assessment to establish appropriate 
mitigation measures to solve existing transport capacity issues. Whilst such 
mitigation schemes may not be known at this time, the contributions identified 
to mitigate the impact of the proposal could be collectively secured and put 
forward to part fund wider strategic highway improvement schemes at these 
locations. 
 

5.29 Officers are satisfied that the proposed mitigation will be beneficial to the local 
area network, whilst taking into account of the proposed forecast of 
development traffic associated with this proposal. The LHA also consider the 
submitted improvement plans for Rowstock Roundabout, Dwg. No. J32-4630-
PS-103 REV E and Steventon Lights Junction, Dwg. No J32-4630-PS-112 
REV A comply with relevant Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB) 
standards, subject to more detailed design and technical approval under 
Highway legislation. 
 

5.30 Site access/layout 
5.31 The applicant has submitted a stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) and a set of 

amended plans and documents to address comments regarding internal 
visibility splays and forward visibility at the site access with the A4130 (in both 
ways), and internal carriageway, footway and cycleway dimensions.  The 
submitted plans and documents have been assessed by the LHA and are 
considered acceptable. 
 

5.32 Cycling and Walking 
5.33 To promote cycling and walking, part of the Highway mitigation works include 

a toucan crossing and an upgrade of the existing northbound footway on the 
A4130 (to a minimum 3m width to allow for a shared-use route for cyclists and 
pedestrians), from the Packhorse Inn bus stops/byway (299/13/30) up to the 
Steventon Lights Junction (without compromising the A4130 running lane 
widths).  
 

5.34 Whilst on plan a 3m wide shared use provision can be delivered, which is 
welcomed, it is evident that just to the north of the proposed development 
access, a section of the shared route is encroaching on third party land, is not 
currently in the control of the Applicant and/or LHA. However, OCC has 
confirmed the unknown land status of this land between the adopted Highway 
and application boundary can be dedicated through the Land Registry ‘gap 
protocol’ process and at this stage is not detrimental as to whether any 
planning permission be granted or otherwise.    
 

5.35 Nevertheless, this land issue will need to be resolved by the applicant before a 
highway agreement for the delivery of the mitigation works can be completed.  
This requirement can be secured through a S106 legal agreement or 
negatively worded condition. 
 

5.36 The signalised toucan crossing is located approximately 170m north of the 
vehicular entrance to the proposed development site together with an informal 
refuge crossing on the A4130 (just to south of the junction with Milton Hill).  

Page 65



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

These are acceptable and can be delivered to promote cycling and walking 
opportunities to and from the site to accord with policy CP35.   
 

5.37 Public Transport 
5.38 Existing pole and flag bus stops are provided to the north of the Pack Horse 

Inn, south of the proposed development access. These stops require 
repositioning marginally further north, so as to be closer to the development 
(i.e. within 400m). Both stops also require: 
 

 suitable hardstanding and kerbs; 

 at least a 3-bay bus shelter with seating and full-end panels; 

 Real Time Passenger Information displays; 

 pole, flag and timetable case and 

 bus stop clearway markings. 
 

5.39 The LHA are of the view that the relocated bus stops can be delivered without 
encroaching on the A4130 or third-party land. It is expected that the Applicant 
will deliver these works as part of a S278 Agreement, together with a 
commuted sum for maintenance. 
 

5.40 Conclusion on Traffic and Highway Safety 
5.41 Both, the local Highway Authority (Oxfordshire County Council) and the 

national Highway Authority (Highways England) raise no objections to the 
proposed amended scheme. The proposed mitigation and timing for its 
delivery are considered acceptable to both highway engineers and your 
officers. 
 

5.42 On this basis, officers consider the proposal to be acceptable in terms its 
impact upon the public road network and would not cause serve harm to 
conflict with the requirements of Policies CP33, CP35, DP16 and DP17 of the 
Local Plan 2031 or to advice in the NPPF in respect of promoting sustainable 
transport. 
 

5.43 Landscape Impact 
5.44 Policy CP44 of LPP1 confirms that key features that contribute to the nature 

and quality of the district’s landscape will be protected from harmful 
development, and where possible enhanced.  Where development is 
acceptable in principle, proposals will need to demonstrate how they have 
responded to landscape character and incorporate appropriate landscape 
proposals. 
 

5.45 A Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVIA) as part of the Environmental 
Statement (ES) and an addendum has been submitted in support of the 
application. The LVIA and Supplementary Landscape and Visual Information. 
The LVIA found that there will be local views of the upper extent of the 
proposed development, and some local visual receptors will experience 
adverse visual effects. The additional tree planting will not provide full 
screening of the proposed development, but will provide an increase in 
successional planting. Further to that, the removal of Units 3a and 3b will 
reduce the visibility of the proposed development in views from the south.  

Page 66



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.46 The Landscape Architect initially raised a holding objection to the proposal. 
The areas of concern related to the location of the proposed built form 
(buildings were considered too close to the northern, southern and western 
boundaries); a lack of space for the planting; conflicts with tree root protection 
areas and proposed services/utilities, and the height of the proposed buildings 
(18 metres). 

 
5.47 The proposed scheme has been amended to address these objections. As a 

result, two units (3a and 3b) have been omitted from the scheme, creating a 
wider green buffer between the application site and the Milton Hill House 
Hotel.  Further to that the extent of Units 1 and 4 have been reduced, as well 
as the landscape buffer strengthened by 1m along western façade of Unit 5. 
The amendments also include provision of some additional planting 
throughout the layout.  
 

5.48 In the latest comments, the Landscape Architect states that it is disappointing 
that the submitted amendments have not addressed the height of the 
buildings and do not provide peripheral planting to ensure long-term softening 
and filtering of views and the long-term replacement of existing vegetation 
where this has a limited life expectancy. However, the Landscape Architect 
concluded that “I do not consider that the landscape harm caused by the 
proposals would be sufficient to merit a reason for refusal on landscape 
grounds.”  
 

5.49 The site is a brownfield site and the landscape in the area although comprises 
a mixture of uses with limited sense of remoteness or tranquillity, it is not 
assessed to be of special quality; vegetation helps to obscure views. Due to 
the location of the site the proposals would not affect the North Wessex 
Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty located to the south, neither in 
landscape or visual terms.  
 

5.50 With regards to the scale and massing of the proposed buildings, only a 
limited number of visual receptors would be affected, with few views from the 
surrounding footpath network (most impact would be for users of a short 
section of Abingdon Road) which are considered to be lesser sensitive 
receptors in landscape visual terms. 
 

5.51 Landscaping and Trees 
5.52 Trees form a dominant feature of the landscape on this site, clearly visible to 

the public, making an important contribution to the landscape character of the 
area. There are also trees on site that are protected by a tree preservation 
order (TPO). 
 

5.53 The Forestry Officer initially raised a holding objection as “the extent of 
development being proposed, and the amount of built form and hard surfacing 
is significant, and the proposal fails to provide sufficient space in the design to 
accommodate tree planting needed to screen and soften the site and mitigate 
the loss of the trees proposed to be removed.” 
 
 

Page 67



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.54 It was recommended that the proposal be redesigned to allow for the retention 
of more protected trees throughout the site, removing developer away from 
Root Protection Areas (RPA) of trees retained, and more space provided for 
suitable tree planting to be implemented on the site. 
 

5.55 The applicant has amended the scheme to address these objections. In 
comparison to the original plans, the latest layout design removes Units 3a 
and 3b, reduces the size of Units 1 and 5 to increase some of the areas for 
planting. There is also a reduction in areas of hard surfacing that initially 
encroached into root protection areas.  Where areas do encroach, the use of a 
no-dig solution is suggested.  
 

5.56 The Forestry Officer has assessed these changes and confirms that on 
balance the loss of trees requiring removal for the proposed development will 
be mitigated by new planting that will be implemented throughout the site. 
Therefore, officers are satisfied the initial concerns raised have been 
satisfactorily addressed. 
 

5.57 The proposed landscaping scheme is considered acceptable, subject to a 
planning condition securing its implementation. The additional condition 
requested by the Forestry Officer (Tree Protection) will also be imposed to a 
planning permission.  
 

5.58 Officers consider the proposed development would not cause unacceptable 
landscape, visual or arboricultural harm to result in a conflict with policy CP44.  
 

5.59 Biodiversity 

5.60 The principle of this development is being considered under Core Policy 28 of 
the LPP1. This policy seeks to allow new employment development on 
unallocated sites, in certain locations, where the benefits of development 
outweigh any harm. This approach is consistent with Core Policy 46 of the 
LPP1. 
 

5.61 Core Policy 46 seeks to avoid impacts on sensitive ecological receptors, such 
as protected species, priority habitats and designated sites, and secure net 
gains for biodiversity. When adverse impacts are identified, the development 
must meet the tests under the policy (related to need, benefit, reasonable 
alternatives and net gain) to be acceptable. 
 

5.62 Development likely to result in the loss, deterioration or harm to habitats or 
species of importance to biodiversity or of importance for geological 
conservation interests, either directly or indirectly, will not be permitted unless:  
 

i. the need for, and benefits of, the development in the proposed location 
outweighs the adverse effect on the relevant biodiversity interest; 
 

ii.  it can be demonstrated that it could not reasonably be located on an 
alternative site that would result in less or no harm to the biodiversity 
interests; and 

 

Page 68



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

iii. measures can be provided (and are secured through planning 
conditions or legal agreements), that would avoid, mitigate against or, 
as a last resort, compensate for, the adverse effects likely to result from 
development. 

 
5.63 This application is supported by an Environmental Statement (ES). Chapter 11 

of the ES addresses biodiversity and ecological matters, along with the 
relevant 
appendices. 
 

5.64 The Countryside Officer initially raised a holding objection, as the submitted 
ecological information was not considered sufficient to meet the Natural 
England requirements, and further surveys (including botanical surveys, bat 
surveys, reptile surveys, Great Crested Newt (GCN) survey and invertebrate 
survey work) have been requested to be carried out.  
 

5.65 Further to that the submitted Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) assessment 
presented results showing that the development will result in a significant net 
loss of biodiversity (approximately 34 biodiversity units), and a request for the 
full metric used to undertake the assessment to be provided to ensure that the 
assessment is scrutinised properly. 
 

5.66 The applicant has carried out the requested surveys and amended the 
proposal. The amended scheme will reduce the overall level of biodiversity 
impact. This is corroborated by a supporting BNG metric which is showing a 
net loss of 17.89 biodiversity units.  
 

5.67 The proposed landscape scheme has been designed to ensure there is no 
adverse impact on bat habitat areas. The illumination that would normally be 
free flowing from site boundaries has been restricted to mitigate any potential 
impact within any ecology and bat habitat zones. Light spill has been 
restricted to a maximum of 3 lux and below at ground level within these zones.  
 

5.68 The Countryside Officer has re-assessed the scheme and accepts the metric 
calculation and confirms this can be secured through off site enhancements.  
The officer has also stated that “the amended scheme is unlikely to have any 
significant adverse impact on the ability of the local bat population to forage or 
commute around the edges of the site. Landscape connectivity will likely be 
retained and no impacts on roosting bats are anticipated.”  
 

5.69 The following conditions have been requested by the Countryside Officer:  
 
- Construction environmental management plan (CEMP) 
- Biodiversity enhancement plan (BEP) 
- Biodiversity offsetting (a restrictive condition securing the offsite delivery of at 

least 17.89 biodiversity units) 
 

5.70 These are considered reasonable and justifiable, and subject to their inclusion 
on any permission given, officers consider the amended proposal complies 
with the requirements under CP46 of the LPP1.  

Page 69



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.71 Residential amenity 

5.72 Local Plan Policies DP23, DP24, DP25 and DP26 seek to prevent 
development that would result in a loss of privacy, daylight, or sunlight for 
neighbouring properties or that would cause dominance or visual intrusion for 
neighbouring properties and the wider environment. Design principles DG63-
64 of the Design Guide pertain to amenity, privacy and overlooking. 
 

5.73 Objections received from residents and Parish Councils consider the proposal 
will have a detrimental impact upon the residential amenities of homes and 
nearby businesses, such as Milton Hill House Hotel, in terms of noise, 

vibrations and disturbance resulting from the operation of the proposal and 
additional HGV traffic (particularly during the night) that will be generated.  
 

5.74 Noise 
Policy DP25 in states that noise-generating development that would have an 
impact on environmental amenity or biodiversity will be expected to provide an 
appropriate scheme of mitigation that should take account of:  
 

i. the location, design, and layout of the proposed development 
ii. existing levels of background noise 
iii. measures to reduce or contain generated noise, and  
iv. hours of operation and servicing. 

 
Development will not be permitted if mitigation cannot be provided within an 
appropriate design or standard. 
 

5.75 The applicant has submitted a Noise and Vibration Assessment. This 
assesses potential noise levels generated by the operation of the site, 
proposed mitigation and noise management.   
 

5.76 The assessment compares the development against the existing baseline, 
and concludes “there would be a change in noise level of up to 2.3 decibels 
(dB) at sensitive receptors. This falls within the No Observed Adverse Effect 
Level threshold. When comparing the Development to the future baseline 
scenario, there would be a change in noise level of up to 1.8dB. This falls 
within the Lowest Observed Adverse Effect Level threshold.”  Officers are 
satisfied this level of change would not be materially harmful to warrant refusal 
of the application. 
 

5.77 The assessment also assessed cumulative noise impact levels and states 
that: 
 
“cumulative operational noise levels during the daytime and night-time periods 
are predicted to be below the guideline noise intrusion criteria at nearby 
properties assuming both a windows-open and a windows-closed scenario.  
 
When assessed on a worst-case basis, noise from the proposed distribution 
unit is predicted to have a low impact and noise levels fall within the Lowest 
Observed Adverse Effect Level (LOAEL). 
Therefore, the proposed distribution facilities are not expected to have an 

Page 70



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

adverse impact on health or quality of life.” 
 

5.78 The Environmental Health Protection Team assessed the report and raise no 
objection subject to the full implementation of the mitigation measures 
identified (which can be secured by condition).  Notwithstanding, a further 
condition prohibiting the use of vehicle reversing alarms (other than broad 
band alarms) on site to protect the amenity of nearby noise sensitive premises 
(hotel) was recommended. 
 

5.79 The suggested condition to prevent the use of vehicle alarm use on site is 
considered by your officers and the applicant to be unenforceable. In 
response the applicant has provided an Operational Noise Management Plan 
(December 2021).  Implementation of this plan (by condition) is considered 
acceptable to Environmental Protection Team as an alternative, and 
consequently no objection from Environmental Health on noise grounds, 
remains. 
 

5.80 The proposal is therefore considered to be in line with the requirements of 
Policy DP25 of LPP2.  
 

5.81 Light 
5.82 The proposed lighting scheme has been designed to ensure there is no 

adverse impact upon amenity on the adjoining property areas (including Milton 
Hill House Hotel) due to glare through shielding of the lamps, choice of 
luminaires and efficient mounting heights. 
 

5.83 The implementation of the lighting scheme can be secured by a planning 
condition.  
 

5.84 Air Quality 
5.85 Policy DP26 of LPP2 confirms that development proposals that are likely to 

have an impact on local air quality, including those within relative proximity to 
existing air quality management areas (AQMAs) will need to demonstrate 
measures / mitigation to minimise any impacts associated with air quality. 
Paragraph 186 of the NPPF states decisions should ensure that any new 
development in AQMAs is consistent with the local air quality action plan. 
 

5.86 The applicant has provided an assessment of air quality as part of the ES and 
an addendum has been submitted in support of the application.  It considered 
both construction and operational impacts. It predicts that the principle 
operational air quality impact will be from traffic emissions. Modelling includes 
assessment of the impacts on the Marcham AQMA which lies along the A415, 
a principal route linking the A34 to the A420. The modelling predicts that air 
quality impacts generally will not be significant, and this is generally accepted. 
 

5.87 Whilst the overall air quality impacts are predicted to be not significant, the Air 
Quality Officer raised a holding objection on specific impacts in the Marcham 
AQMA, particularly at modelled receptor R12 which represents 10 Packhorse 
Lane(S16), where the highest concentrations of nitrogen dioxide in the AQMA 
are recorded.  

Page 71



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.88 The Air Quality Assessment predicts the impact at this point will be a 1% 
increase on the air quality objective which is a 'Moderate' impact according to 
EPUK/IAQM guidance. It was considered this prediction may represent an 
underestimation, and new modelling was requested to include modelling for a 
“street canyon” and “accurate representation of traffic speeds for receptor R12 
which represents 10 Packhorse Lane(S16). An Air Quality Briefing Note was 
submitted in response which has been reviewed by the Air Quality Officer and 
it is accepted air quality impacts from this development upon the Marcham 
AQMA will be negligible and in view of this there is no objection in respect of 
the impact upon Marcham AQMA. 
 

5.89 Notwithstanding, the following conditions have been requested to offset any 
air quality impact:  
 

1. implementation and adherence to the mitigations identified in the Air 
Quality Assessment; and  

 
2. provision of on-site electric vehicle charging points (in accordance 

with the Vale of White Horse Air Quality Developers Guidance). 
 

5.90 Subject to these conditions, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy 
DP26 of LPP2 and Paragraph 186 of the NPPF.  
 

5.91 Contaminated land 
5.92 Policy DP27 of LPP2 requires developers to address all land contamination 

risks to the development, environment, controlled waters and adjacent land 
associated with the development. 
 

5.93 The applicant submitted a Ground Investigation Report (GIR) and subsequent 
revisions in response to comments from the Contaminated Land Officer. The 
Phase II Ground Investigation Report (Ref: 135565 Rev.3 dated 1st April 
2021) concludes that no further intrusive investigations other than 
groundwater and gas monitoring, post completion are required. 
 

5.94 Consequently, the contaminated land officer and the Environment Agency 
raise no objections subject to conditions for further monitoring (groundwater 
and gas as above) and remediation for dealing with contamination (as set out 
in section 9 of the report).  
 

5.95 Given the legacy of contamination identified in the report resulting from the 
site’s former use, to ensure that the development is not exposed to any 
unacceptable risks from contamination, and any potential groundwater 
impacts are quantified and subsequently mitigated, these conditions are 
necessary to ensure compliance with Policy DP27 of the LPP2 and paragraph 
185 of the NPPF. 
 

5.96 Flood Risk and Drainage 

5.97 Policy CP42of the LPP1 seeks to ensure that development provides 
appropriate measures for the management of surface water as an essential 
element of reducing future flood risk to both the site and its surroundings. 

Page 72



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 
5.98 The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted with the application confirms 

that the site lies within Flood Zone 1 and is at a low risk of flooding from rivers 
or sea as well as from other potential sources of flood risk.   
 

5.99 The Council's Drainage Team initially raised a holding objection and 
requested further survey work and calculations to be submitted along with a 
Sustainable Urban Drainage system (SUDs) to be incorporated within the 
scheme.  
 

5.100 The Lead Local Flood Authority (County Council) also initially objected to the 
proposal and required calculations for the site’s drainage and requested for 
the proposed drainage scheme to be redesigned.  
 

5.101 The amended scheme was submitted for re-assessment and the Council’s 
Drainage Team is satisfied that their holding objection can be withdrawn, 
subject to conditions.  
 

5.102 The requested conditions relate to the details of the surface and foul water 
drainage strategy to be submitted for approval, the submission of the SUDs 
verification report and a detailed survey and inspection of the boundary ditch 
and downstream culverts to a suitable receiving watercourse to be submitted 
to and approved in writing. Officers are satisfied these conditions are 
necessary to ensure the proposal mitigates flood risk. 
 

5.103 Foul water 
5.104 Thames Water has advised that with regard to foul water sewerage network 

infrastructure capacity, Thames Water would not have any objection to the 
above planning application.  
 

5.105 Water supply 
Thames Water has however identified capacity issues with water supply. 
Some capacity exists within the water supply network, but upgrades will be 
required. A Grampian condition is requested that prevents occupation until 
confirmation has been provided that all water network upgrades required to 
serve the development have been completed, or alternatively a development 
and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to allow 
the development to be occupied. Officers consider the requested condition to 
be reasonable and necessary. 
 

5.106 Subject to the conditions set requested above, the proposed development is 
considered to accord with policy CP42.  
 

5.107 Historic Environment 
5.108 Heritage assets 
5.109 Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 requires a local planning authority to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Considerable 
importance and weight should be given to this requirement. 

Page 73



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.110 Policy DP36 of LPP2 and Core Policy 39 of LPP1 state that proposals for new 
development that may affect heritage assets must demonstrate that they 
conserve and enhance the special interest or significance of the heritage 
asset and its setting. 
 

5.111 There are no Listed buildings or conservation areas nearby where their setting 
could be affected by this proposal.  However, in initial comments from the 
Council’s Conservation Officer it was stated that there is potential low-level 
impact caused by Unit 3 to the significance of Milton Hill House Hotel, which 
has been identified as a non-designated heritage asset. 
 

5.112 The amended proposal has removed Units 3a and 3b, and the Conservation 
Officer considers that any indirect visual impacts on the setting of Milton Hill 
House Hotel has now been lessened to an acceptable degree to remove their 
objection.  
 

5.113 Officers consider therefore there is no objection on heritage grounds to justify 
withholding permission or that could be reasonably defended on appeal. The 
proposal complies with the Policy DP36 of LPP2, Core Policy 39 of LPP1 and 
the NPPF. 
 

5.114 Archaeology  
5.115 DP39 of LPP2 states that development will be permitted where it can be 

shown that it would not be detrimental to the site or setting of Scheduled 
Monuments or nationally important designated or non-designated 
archaeological remains. 

 
5.116 The County Archaeologist confirmed that there are no known archaeological 

features or monuments within the application area. Overall officers consider 
that the proposed development is in conformity with policy DP39 of LPP2. 
 

5.117 Urban Design 

5.118 Policy CP37 of LPP1 states that new development must demonstrate high 
quality design that responds positively to the site and its surroundings, 
creating a distinctive sense of place through high quality townscape and 
landscaping that physically and visually integrates with its surroundings.  
 

5.119 Policy CP38 of LPP1 sets out more detailed design criterion required for 
strategic and major development sites, whereas Policy CP40 of LPP1 refers to 
Sustainable Design and Construction and encourages developers to 
incorporate climate change adaptation and design measures to combat the 
effects of changing weather patterns in all new development.  

5.120 The Council’s Urban Design Officer provided comments on the initial 
submission that further landscaping should be provided to soften the overall 
development and the parking proposed within the site. Comments also 
suggested the applicant should aim to attain the Building Research 
Establishment's Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) rating of 
Excellence.   
 

5.121 A BREEAM assessment uses recognised measures of performance (and it is 

Page 74



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

a recognised sustainability assessment method for assessing new 
development). It assesses the environmental, social and economic 
sustainability performance of a development against set criteria across the 
built environment lifecycle, from construction to completion and operation. 
 

5.122 It is considered that the proposed design of the office building broadly follows 
the principles outlined within the adopted Council’s Design Guide, in particular 
Section 9: “Commercial and Employment areas”. In this section of the Design 
Guide, the emphasis is placed on the simplicity of form and a contemporary 
design language.  
 

5.123 Energy and sustainability 
5.124 Although the current Local Plan 2031 Parts 1 and 2 have no policies requiring 

BREEAM rating, in line with the Policies CP37 and CP38 of the LPP1 any new 
proposals are expected to be sustainable and delivered to a high quality.  
 

5.125 According to the submitted documents, the Applicant confirmed that they are 
committed to achieve BREEAM Excellent accreditation, which is considered to 
be a benefit to the proposal as it demonstrates that is actively trying to 
address the climate change. 
 

5.126 The design measures proposed to be used in order to minimise the energy 
consumption include effective built form and orientation; construction methods 
(use of pre-fabricated units); installation of Photovoltaic (PV) panels on 
unshaded roof areas and the incorporation of the Air-Source Heat Pumps 
(ASHPs). It is also proposed to use of LED lighting utilising low-energy control 
systems, water efficient fixtures and to provide the electric charging points for 
all van and car parking spaces on-site, to encourage the use of electric 
vehicles.  
 

5.127 With regards to the scale and massing of the proposed buildings, taking into 
account advise provided by the Landscape Architect it is considered that only 
a limited number of visual receptors would be affected, with few views from 
the surrounding footpath network who are generally considered less sensitive 
receptors, therefore the proposal is considered acceptable. 
 

5.128 Overall, Officers consider that the incorporation of the design measures to 
minimise the energy consumption address the requirements under the Policy 
CP40.  It is not considered that the proposed development would cause 
unacceptable visual harm that would result in a conflict with policies CP37, 
CP38 and CP44 of the LPP1 and the adopted Council’s Design Guide.  
 

5.129 Other considerations 
5.130 Community Employment Plan 
5.131 The proposal will provide relevant employment opportunities for the local area 

and Oxfordshire and potentially creates an additional 600-1200 jobs. The 
Economic Development Team supports the proposed development and asks 
for the submission of the detailed Community Employment Plan (CEP) to be 
secured by a condition, in line with the policy DP11.  
 

Page 75



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

5.132 Public Art 
5.133 Policy DP20 of LPP2 requires proposals for all major development to provide 

public art that makes a significant contribution towards the appearance of the 
scheme or character of the area, or which benefits the local community. 

 
5.134 The applicant has submitted a Public Art Location plan, which illustrates the 

approximate location for on-site public art. The proposed area is located within 
the open space in the south-western corner of the application site, adjacent to 
the proposed access point and is acceptable. The exact details and form of 
the proposed Public Art will be secured by a planning condition, in line with the 
Policy DP20 of LPP2. 
 

5.135 Financial contribution requests  
The NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be sought where they 
meet all of the following tests in paragraph 204:  
 

I. Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms;  

II. Directly related to the development; and 
III. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development. 
 
Policy CP7 of LPP1 provides that development will only be permitted where 
the necessary physical infrastructure and service requirements to support the 
development can be secured 
 

5.136 Community Infrastructure Levy 
5.137 The proposed development by a nature of the proposed use (commercial) is 

not CIL liable, and the financial contributions that are sought towards the 
infrastructure improvement will be secured via a bipartite legal agreement 
(s106) directly between the applicant and the Oxfordshire County Council.  
 

5.138 Legal agreement S106 
5.139 The following developer contributions are considered fair and proportionate 

and should be secured though a section 106 agreement: 
 

Oxfordshire County Council Amount (£) 

Strategic Highway Contributions 
 

£1,650,000 

Public transport services 
 

£225,000 

Travel Plan Monitoring 
 

£2,379 

Administration and Monitoring Fee  
 

TBC 

Total £1,877,379 
 

 
 
 

Page 76



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 This is full application for erection of 4no. commercial buildings for purposes 
within Classes B2 and B8 together with access and servicing arrangements, 
parking, landscaping, boundary treatment, gatehouse building, public art 
installation and associated works. 
 

6.2 This application has been determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise as required by Section 
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

6.3 In considering the application, due regard has been given to the 
representations received from statutory and other consultees. These have 
been taken into account in assessing the overall scheme. 
 

6.4 The site is not allocated in the development plan for employment use in the 
Local Plan 2031 (Part 1 and Part 2) therefore the principle of the proposal was 
assessed against the requirenment of the Core Policy 28 - New Employment 
Development on Unallocated Sites. 
 

6.5 This policy sets out that proposals for new employment development (Use 
Classes B1, B2 or B8) will be supported on unallocated sites in or on the edge 
of, the built-up area of Market Towns, Local Service Centres and Larger and 
Smaller Villages provided that the benefits are not outweighed by any harmful 
impacts, taking into account the following:  
 

(i) the effect on the amenity of nearby residents and occupiers  
 

(ii) the provision of safe site access for pedestrians and cyclists and for all 
types of vehicles likely to visit the sites, and measures to promote the 
use of sustainable modes of transport where possible, and 

 
(iii) the scale, nature and appearance of the employment development and 

its relationship with the local townscape and/ or landscape character 
 
The site lies in open countryside for planning purposes and is not on the edge 
of a built-up area, as such the latter part of Core Policy 28 also applies which 
states: 
 
In the rural areas the re-use, conversion or adaptation of suitable existing 
buildings for employment will also be supported subject to criteria (i)-(iii) where 
applicable. Other rural proposals will be supported, provided that, in addition to 
criteria (i)-(iii) where applicable:  
 

(iv) the proposal cannot reasonably be accommodated on employment land 
identified as vacant or developable, and  

(v) it can be demonstrated that the proposal will benefit the local economy 
and will not undermine the delivery of the strategic employment 
allocations. 

 
 

Page 77



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

6.6 Due to distance of the proposed development and the nearest residential 
properties, there is no unreasonable overbearing, over shadowing or 
overlooking impacts for residents. The recommended planning conditions can 
control light and noise emissions preventing unreasonable impacts for 
residents. 
 

6.7 The proposed access and traffic impact of the proposal was assessed by eth 
the Local Highway Authority and is acceptable. Along the financial 
contributions secured towards improvement of the strategic highway 
improvements (as identified by the Local Highway Authority) and the public 
transport, a signalised toucan crossing (approximately 170m north of the 
vehicular entrance to the proposed development site) and an informal refuge 
crossing on the A4130 improved (south of the junction with Milton Hill) will be 
delivered.  
 

6.8 Further to that the existing northbound footway on the A4130 will be upgraded 
to a minimum 3m width, to allow for a shared-use route for cyclists and 
pedestrians from the Packhorse Inn bus stops/byway (299/13/30) to the 
Steventon Lights Junction. 
 

6.9 The scale and appearance of the proposed employment development was 
assessed by the Council’s Landscape Architect, Urban Design Officer and 
Forestry Officer and its relationship with the surrounding area is considered 
acceptable. 
 

6.10 Officers are satisfied that it’s been demonstrated that the proposal cannot be 
reasonably accommodated on employment land identified as vacant (or 
developable), and that the proposal will benefit the local economy and will not 
undermine the delivery of the strategic employment allocations. 
 

6.11 The identified economic benefits outweigh any potential adverse impacts that 
the proposal may cause. Further to that, these can be further mitigated by the 
recommended planning conditions and completion of a Legal Agreement 
(S106) with the Oxfordshire County Council. Therefore, on balance, it is 
considered that the amended proposal is development plan compliant and is 
recommended for approval. 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account  
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) Policies: 
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy 
CP06  -  Meeting Business and Employment Needs 
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services 
CP15  -  Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area 
CP28  -  New Employment Development on Unallocated Sites 
CP29  -  Change of Use of Existing Employment Land and Premises 
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 

Page 78



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee- 15 February 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CP38  -  Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites 
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction 
CP42  -  Flood Risk 
CP43  -  Natural Resources 
CP44  -  Landscape 
CP45  -  Green Infrastructure 
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity 
 
Local Plan 2031 Part 2  
CP15a -  Additional Site Allocations for South-East Vale Sub-Area 
CP15b -  Harwell Campus Comprehensive Development Framework 
DP10 -  Ancillary Uses on Employment Land 
DP11 -  Community Employment Plans 
DP16 -  Access 
DP17 -  Transport Assessments and Travel Plans 
DP20 -  Public Art 
DP21 -  External Lighting 
DP23 -  Impact of Development on Amenity 
DP24 -  Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments 
DP25 -  Noise Pollution 
DP26 -  Air Quality 
DP27 -  Land Affected by Contamination 
DP28 -  Waste Collection and Recycling 
DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
 

7.3 Neighbourhood plan 
 There is no Neighbour Plan for Milton Village. 

 
7.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 Vale of White Horse Design Guide (2015) 
Developer Contributions – Delivering Infrastructure to Support Development (2017) 
 

7.5 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.6 Other Relevant Legislation 
7.7 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

7.8 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 
 
Contact officer – Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel 
Email – planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
Tel – 01235 442600 

  

Page 79

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Po
nd

FB

Milton Hill Business
Sub
El

FE
A

TH
ER

BE
D

 L
A

N
E

Gable Cottage

Cottage

White House

East Lodge

Pond

Milton Hill

Hack

and Technology Centre

Drain

Sta

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

Sp

190200N 190200N

190250N 190250N

190300N 190300N

190350N 190350N

190400N 190400N

190450N 190450N

190500N 190500N

190550N 190550N

190600N 190600N

190650N 190650N

190700N 190700N

4
4

7
1

0
0

E

4
4

7
1

5
0

E

4
4

7
2

0
0

E

4
4

7
2

5
0

E

4
4

7
3

0
0

E

4
4

7
3

5
0

E

4
4

7
4

0
0

E

4
4

7
4

5
0

E

4
4

7
5

0
0

E

4
4

7
5

5
0

E

4
4

7
6

0
0

E

4
4

7
6

5
0

E

4
4

7
7

0
0

E

4
4

7
7

5
0

E

4
4

7
8

0
0

E

SLOW

- Dimensions are in millimeters, unless stated otherwise.

- Scaling of this drawing is not recommended.

- It is the recipients responsibility to print this document to the correct scale.

- All relevant drawings and specifications should be read in conjunction with this drawing.

25m SCALE 1:1250

N

C1

- Revision reference

- Layout to be confirmed

Drawing Status:

Drawn / Checked:

Date:

Scale:

Drawing no: Revision:

amendmentsrev by ckd date

Newark Beacon, Cafferata Way, Newark, Nottinghamshire NG24 2TN

o. +44 (0)1636 653027 e. info@umcarchitects.com

/

Planning

P
L

A
N

N
I
N

G

T
H

I
S

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
I
S

 
F

O
R

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
C

O
N

S
I
D

E
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

N
L

Y

A
N

D
 
S

H
O

U
L

D
 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
F

O
R

 
A

N
Y

 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

Equation Properties Limited

on behalf of Star UK Abingdon Propco Limited

& Esso Petroleum Company Limited

Esso Site, Milton Hill, Abingdon

Site Location Plan

CJD LF

15.03.2021

1:1250 A1

19176 P0101 C

+ 190250 N

+ 190300 N

+ 190350 N

+ 190400 N

+ 190450 N

+ 190500 N

+ 190550 N

+ 190600 N

+ 190650 N

+ 190700 N

+
 
4

4
7

1
5

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

2
0

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

2
5

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

3
0

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

3
5

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

4
0

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

4
5

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

5
0

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

5
5

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

6
0

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

6
5

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

7
0

0
 
E

+
 
4

4
7

7
5

0
 
E

KEY:

Planning Boundary

27.34 acres / 11.067 ha

F

e

a

t

h

e

r

b

e

d

 

L

a

n

e

A
b
i
n
g
d
o
n
 
R

o
a
d

Appendix 1P
age 80



Appendix 2

P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



P
age 84



P
age 85



P
age 86



 Appendix 3 

Application no: P21/V1171/FUL4 
Location: Former Esso Research Centre Abingdon Road Milton Hill Abingdon 
 
 

 
Transport Development Control 

 
Recommendation 
 
No objection subject to conditions 
 
Key issues: 
 

• Financial contributions to strategic highway schemes. 
• Car and cycle parking provision levels relative to class uses and parking 

standards. 
• Delivery of 3m wide shared-use cycleway/footway from Packhorse Inn through 

to Steventon Lights Junction. 
• Review distribution to the south of the site as will have impact on validity of the 

modelling 
 
Legal agreement required to secure: 
 
  

Contribution  Amount £ Price 
base Index Towards 

(details) 
Strategic 
Highway 
Contribution  
 

1,650,000 
 
 
 

Dec. 
‘21 

Baxter Strategic 
transport 
infrastructure 
improvements 
including 
schemes at 
Rowstock & 
Steventon Lights 

Public transport 
services 

225,000 Dec. 
‘20 

RPIX The 
enhancement of 
local bus 
services 
between the site 
and Didcot 
 

Travel Plan 
Monitoring 

2,379.00 Dec. 
‘20 

RPIX Monitoring of a 
travel plan for a 
period of 5 years 

 
 
 
 

Page 87



 Appendix 3 

S278 provisions: 
 

• Provision of bus stop infrastructure on A4130, x2 locations in both directions 
within 400m of site (actual locations TBC by OCC): 
• suitable hardstanding and kerbs; 
• 3-bay bus shelter with seating and full-end panels; 
• Real Time Passenger Information displays 
• pole, flag and timetable case and 
• bus stop clearway markings 
 

• Provide a link for cyclists and pedestrians at the point where the byway 
(299/12/20) meets Featherbed Lane, a link is required to be provided into the 
site to promote active travel. This will allow Non-Motorised Users access to the 
western side of the development without having to negotiate the internal road 
network of the site. 

 
• Widen the existing A4130 northbound footway to a minimum of 3m from the 

Pack Horse Inn Bus stops/byway (299/13/30) to Steventon Lights Junction and 
converted to a shared-use route for cyclists and pedestrians.   

 
• Provide a formal crossing provision that will include  a refuge crossing (with 

tactile paving) to provide pedestrians and cyclists a connection to the bus stops 
on both sides of the A4130, adjacent to Packhorse Inn. 
 

• Provide a signalled toucan crossing to allow cyclists and pedestrians a safe 
crossing point where byway (299/12/20) from Milton Hill to Featherbed Lane 
crosses the A4130. 
 

NB: If in the interim the County Council promotes an alternative scheme(s) along or 
adjacent to the A4130, then an appropriate S106 contribution will be sort to part fund 
any scheme, based on the delivery value of the of the above S278 provisions.  
 
 
Conditions: 
 
Should permission be granted, then the following conditions should be included: 
 
Access Roads and Footways 
Before commencement of any works, full engineering details of the access roads and 
footways within the site shall be submitted and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Thereafter, prior to occupation of any building, the means of access roads 
and footways shall be laid out, constructed, lit and drained.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
construction and layout for the development, in accordance with the Councils 
requirements. (Policy 37 of the VWHDC Local Plan 2031) 
 
Access, Parking and Turning Space in Accordance with Specified Plan 

Page 88



 Appendix 3 

Prior to the use or occupation of the new development, the amended vehicular access, 
parking spaces and turning spaces shall be constructed and the visibility splays 
provided (2.4m x 160m) in accordance with Drawing Nos.19176-P0102 REVJ,  J32-
4630-PS-003. The parking and turning areas shall be kept permanently free of any 
obstruction to such use, and the visibility splays shall be permanently maintained free 
from obstruction to vision. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to avoid localised flooding (Policies 16, 
35 & 37 of the VWHDC Local Plan 2031)). 
 
Car Parking 
Before commencement of any works, details of all car parking facilities including their 
allocation shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter, the proposed car parking facilities shall be provided before first occupation.   
 
Reason:  To ensure adequate car parking provision within the site in accordance with 
the Council’s adopted parking standards and in the interests of highway safety. (Policy 
33 of the VWHDC Local Plan 2031)  
 
Cycle Parking Facilities 
Secure and covered cycle parking facilities shall be provided, in accordance with 
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior 
to the commencement of development. The development shall not be brought into use 
until the cycle parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided within the 
site in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the areas shall be retained 
solely for the purpose of the parking of cycles. 
 
Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport (Policy 33 and 35 of 
the VWHDC Local Plan 2031)  
 
Wheel washing facilities 
Wheel washing facilities shall be established within the site in accordance with details 
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of development. Such facilities shall be established prior to the 
commencement of demolition or construction and shall be kept in operation at all times 
during demolition and construction works.  
 
Reason: To prevent the tracking out of materials onto the highway in the interests of 
highway safety. 
 
Method Statement 
Prior to the commencement of any development (including demolition works), a 
Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The approved Statement shall be complied with throughout 
the construction period, and shall provide details of the following: 
 

1. Vehicle parking facilities for construction workers, other site operatives and 
visitors; 

2. Site offices and other temporary buildings; 
3. Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

Page 89



 Appendix 3 

4. Storage of plant and materials used during construction; 
5. Vehicle wheel washing facilities; 
6. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt; 
7. A scheme for recycling and/or disposing of waste materials arising from the 

demolition and construction works; 
8. Installation and maintenance of security hoarding/fencing. 

 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to protect the amenities of the occupants 
of adjacent uses during construction (Policy 33 of the VWHDC Local Plan 2031). 
 
Off-site highway works  
The off-site highway works, to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, 
shall be implemented in full before the first occupation/use of the development or in 
accordance with a programme of implementation agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Travel Plans 
Prior to first occupation an updated Framework Travel Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority; such plans to include proposals for travel 
by modes other than the private car for journeys to and from site 
 
Reason: To promote the use of sustainable modes of transport. (Policy 35 of the 
VWHDC Local Plan 2031) 
   
NOTE: Further details as to the content of the Travel Plan Statement can be found 
within appendix 4 of the OCC guidance document ‘Transport for New Developments 
– Transport Assessments and Travel Plans, March 2014’. 
 
The Local Planning Authority is recommended to seek the agreement of the Applicant 
to the imposition upon any planning permission they may grant the further pre-
commencement CONDITION(S) set out below: 

 
• CTMP: Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction 

Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved CTMP shall be 
implemented prior to any works being carried out on site and shall be 
implemented throughout the whole construction. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to protect the amenities of 
the occupants of adjacent uses during construction (Policy 33 of the 
VWHDC Local Plan 2031). 

 
• All construction activities shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plan to which they relate. 
 

• Should the essential pre-commencement Conditions set out above not 
be agreed with the applicant, this would result in further objection to the 
proposals from the Highway Authority.    

 
 

Page 90



 Appendix 3 

 
Informatives: 
 
Should permission be granted, then the following informatives should be included: 
 
The Local Planning Authority is recommended to impose upon any planning 
permission they may grant the INFORMATIVE(S) set out below: 
 

• Prior to the commencement of a development, a separate agreement(s) 
must be obtained from Oxfordshire County Council’s (OCC) Road 
Agreements Team for the proposed highway works under S278 of the 
Highways Act 1980. For guidance and information please contact the 
county’s Road Agreements Team via: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/contact-road-agreements-

team. 
 
• It is an offence under S151 of the Highways Act 1980 for vehicles leaving 

the development site to carry mud onto the public highway. Facilities 
should therefore be provided and used on the development site for 
cleaning the wheels of vehicles before they leave the site. 

 
• No vehicles associated with the building operations on the development 

site shall be parked on the public highway, so as to, cause an 
obstruction. Any such obstruction is an offence under S137 of the 
Highways Act 1980. 

 
• The highway authority would require that any area of land not lying within 

the limits of the existing highway boundary and that was required to form 
part of a junction or access visibility splay would be indicated on a 
dedication plan and the land would be formally offered for adoption as 
public highway. 

 
 
Detailed comments:  
 
The Local Highway Authority (LHA) previously made comment on this application in 
single response documents dated 23rd June ’21 and 10th December ’21 respectively. 
Recommendations of objection were made for both sets of consultee comments, with 
the Applicant being requested to address issues for the latter consultee comments 
regarding the toucan crossing, extension of the shared-use route between Featherbed 
Lane and Steventon Lights Junction, together with the deliverability of the shared use 
route in it’s entirety. 
 
In response to the above, the Applicant has submitted a further Transport Assessment 
Addendum, TAA4. 
 

1. Trip Distribution & Generation 
 

Page 91

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/contact-road-agreements-team
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/contact-road-agreements-team
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/contact-road-agreements-team


 Appendix 3 

1.1 In the previous consultee comments, the LHA had concerns with the original 
Transport Assessment (TA) assumption that the majority of the Heavy Goods 
Vehicles (HGV) movements associated with the site were from/towards the 
direction of Milton Interchange (79.7%), with a reduced figure from/towards the 
direction of Rowstock Roundabout/Chilton Interchange (20.3%). Subsequently, 
the distribution has been re-visited and amended distribution figures of 45% and 
55% at the respective key junctions have been submitted, which are now 
considered acceptable.  

 
1.2  Furthermore, a revised masterplan has removed units 3A and 3B, with the 

resultant non-developed areas being utilised as additional parking provision. 
Consequently, the amended reduced GFA has been reduced to 38,839m2, 
previously 44,380m3 and therefore the trip generation, distribution and modelling 
reflects this accordingly. 

 
1.3 With regard to HGV movements, the main focus of concern is at the Rowstock 

Roundabout. The LHA are primarily concerned with movements during the 
respective AM and PM peak times and to this affect, analysis was undertaken 
as to the increase in HGV movements during these respective times. It can be 
deduced from the submitted data that at the horizon year, with proposed 
development in place, there are 11 (7%) and 3 (5%) additional HGV movements 
at the junction during the AM and PM peaks, which is assessed as acceptable 
to Oxfordshire County Council (OCC). This broadly reflects the total numbers of 
all vehicles generated by the development during the AM and PM peaks, these 
being 123 (5%) and 98 (4%) respectively. The table below (taken from an email 
between OCC the Transport Consultant dated 10th January 2022), demonstrates 
the additional development traffic forecast to go through Rowstock Roundabout: 
 

Page 92



 Appendix 3 

 
 

1.4 For context, the submitted TAA4 demonstrates that there are 306 two-way AM 
and 283 two-way PM vehicle trips associated with the proposed development, 
which equates to a reduction of 73 and 66 two-way vehicle movements in the 
respective peak hours prior to the removal of units 3A & 3B. Furthermore this 
amended trip generation is lower than the previously submitted traffic impact 
associated with the previously permitted planning application, P13/V1139/FUL. 

 
2. Modelling 

 
2.1 With reference to the above comments on trip distribution, OCC were of the view 

that the impact on the Rowstock Roundabout was greater than originally 
indicated and therefore requested that the modelling be revised and updated 
through the submission of a TA Addendum.  

 
 

Page 93



 Appendix 3 

2.2 Consequently, modelling, with acceptable inputs, within the latest TAA (dated 
January 2022), Chapter 5, has indicated that some key junctions continue to be 
slightly above acceptable thresholds i.e. RFC’s and degree of saturation above 
0.85 and 90% respectively, these being: 

 
• Trenchard Ave/A4130. 
• Featherbed Lane/A417. 
• A4130/High Street (Steventon Lights). 
• Milton Interchange; and 
• Rowstock Roundabout. 

 
2.3 Further to the above, it was originally agreed that 2 of the key junctions, 

Rowstock Roundabout and Steventon Lights Junction, were to have further 
detailed assessment carried out on them to establish appropriate mitigation 
measures. Whilst such mitigation schemes may not be implemented, their 
respective costings would be collectively secured and put forward to part fund 
strategic highway improvement schemes at several key junctions: 

 
• Rowstock roundabout. 
• A4130/High Street (Steventon Lights). 
• Featherbed Lane/A417. 
• Trenchard Ave/A4130. 

 
2.4 With reference to chapter 6 of TAA4 and the associated submitted plans, it is 

demonstrated that the proposed mitigation will be beneficial to the local area 
network, whilst taking into account of the proposed forecast of development 
traffic associated with this proposal. OCC are of the view that the submitted 
improvement plans for Rowstock Roundabout, Dwg. No. J32-4630-PS-103 REV 
E and Steventon Lights Junction, Dwg. No J32-4630-PS-112 REV A are in 
compliance with relevant DMRB standards, but will be subject to subsequent full 
detailed design approval. 

 
2.5 Consequently, OCC has in the interim been developing an alternative strategic 

highway schemes (as part of on-going Relief to Rowstock optioneering project) 
with regard to seeking an appropriate financial contribution to fund such highway 
capacity improvement works: 

 
Requirement for strategic contributions 
 

2.6  As identified during the pre-application scoping for this proposed development 
and acknowledged in the submitted Transport Assessments and the County 
Council’s formal responses to date to the application, this proposed development 
is required to make a financial contribution towards the Relief to Rowstock and 
the A4130 (Steventon Lights to Milton Interchange) strategic schemes to be 
delivered by Oxfordshire County Council.  Such contributions are to be secured 
via a S106 Agreement and are based upon the proposed mitigation schemes at 
Rowstock Roundabout and Steventon Lights Junction and their associated 
implementation costs. 

 

Page 94



 Appendix 3 

2.7 These contributions are justified (and meet the 3 S106 tests) on the basis that 
traffic generated by the proposed development, is shown to significantly worsen 
congestion notably (but not limited to) at the following locations: Rowstock 
roundabout, Milton Interchange and Steventon Lights).  

 
2.8 Additionally, the proposed development is required to contribute towards these 

strategic schemes which are identified in policy within the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan 2031 (Core Policy 17) and the Oxfordshire County Council Local 
Transport Plan (SV 1.1, SV 2.11, and SV 2.12). 

 
Progress on Relief to Rowstock Optioneering Study 
 

2.9 An optioneering study which will identify preferred schemes to address existing 
and forecast traffic issues at Rowstock and along the A4130 between Steventon 
Lights (High Street B4017 junction) and A34 Milton Interchange is currently 
underway. Previously the County Council stated that this optioneering study 
would need to conclude before a preferred scheme could be identified and 
costed, from which proportionate contributions could then be sought from 
forthcoming planned developments.  

 
2.10  However, as this optioneering study is not due to conclude until spring 2022 and 

in order to avoid causing delay to the determination of affected live applications 
in the area, the optioneering study project has advanced work on one potential 
combination of improvement schemes to use as a basis from which appropriate 
contributions can be derived. This option comprises the construction of western 
and eastern link roads bypassing the Rowstock roundabout and conversion of 
the roundabout to a signalised crossroads. It also comprises an upgrade to the 
Steventon Lights and the widening of the A4130 (eastbound only) between the 
Steventon Lights junction and Milton Interchange. 

 
2.11 It is important to note that whilst this option may not represent the final scheme 

for delivery, it is representative of the scale of intervention required to facilitate 
planned housing and employment growth that impacts on this highway network 
area and is therefore considered an appropriate basis from which contribution 
sums can be derived.  

 
2.12 The preferred intervention(s) will not be known until the performance of all 

options are modelled and the impacts on all modes of travel understood. The 
appropriateness of these options will need to be considered in the context of the 
existing policy, referenced above and the County’s 2020 Climate Action 
Framework. The emerging draft Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (October 
2021), which was recently endorsed by Cabinet as a basis for public consultation, 
will also need to be given due consideration.  

 
Methodology for determining strategic contributions 
 
2.13 The Applicant has been able to devise schemes that could be directly deliverable 

within the highway boundary which mitigate the impacts of the proposed 
development along the A4130, at Steventon Lights Junction and at Rowstock 

Page 95

https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s53262/CA_OCT1320R15%20Annex%201%20OCC%20Climate%20Action%20August%202020.pdf
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s53262/CA_OCT1320R15%20Annex%201%20OCC%20Climate%20Action%20August%202020.pdf
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=8958


 Appendix 3 

Roundabout and this provides an alternative means of mitigating the site’s 
impacts.  
 

2.14 The submitted schemes at Rowstock Roundabout and Steventon Lights 
Junction, and their technical acceptability have be demonstrated adequately, 
therefore they can be used as a suitable basis from which to derive the monetary 
equivalent of said schemes as a contribution towards the County Council’s 
strategic scheme. Alternatively, it may be preferable for the schemes identified 
by the applicant to be delivered directly, suitable wording in the S106 agreement 
can be devised to retain this as an option until a suitable trigger point in the 
development’s build-out. 

 
3. Parking 

 
3.1 The previous consultee comments stated it was unclear from the initial TA 

submission as to what basis the cycle and car parking provisions had been 
derived from, noting that there was no clear indication of the use class mix for 
the respective proposed units within the proposed site. Subsequently, a TRICS 
based parking accumulation, based on worst case scenario class use B2, in line 
with the agreed trip rates, has been submitted as part of the TAA.  

 
3.2 TAA4 Figures 4.2-4.5 indicate parking accumulation numbers that are in 

compliance with the County Council maximum parking rates, indicating an 
overall parking provision for the proposed site of 319 spaces. In addition, a 
further 57 spaces have been provided where the previously proposed units 3A 
& 3B, now removed, were previously located. These spaces are non-unit specific 
and are complementary to the site in general. Overall, the proposed 
development site provides a total of 376 spaces, which is within the County 
maximum parking standards and will not cause displaced parking outside of the 
proposed development site and therefore acceptable. With regard to HGV 
parking and manoeuvring provision within the site, this is also to an acceptable 
level. Furthermore, figures 4.6 & 4.7 and the submitted proposed cycle shelter 
details plan, Dwg. No. 19176-P0102 REV N, indicate an overall cycle parking 
provision for the proposed site of 204 spaces, made up of 86 short stay spaces 
and 118 long stay spaces respectively; these are in compliance with the County 
minimum cycle parking standards and therefore acceptable. Whilst in principle, 
the location of each of the unit’s respective bike stores are conveniently 
positioned relative to the respective main building entrances, each bike storage 
provision will be required to be secure and covered; this can be secured by way 
of condition. Further to the required cycle storage provision, each proposed unit 
within the development is required to provide appropriate shower and changing 
facilities (requested previously in the pre-application comments – 
20/V0002/Preapp: 5th March 2020). 

 
4. Site access/layout 

 
4.1 A swept path analysis plan, Dwg. No. J32-4630-PS001, indicates acceptable 

turning and manoeuvring provision both within the site and at the site access 
with the A4130 for both a 16.5m HGV and an opposing car. 

 

Page 96



 Appendix 3 

4.2 Dwg. No. J32-1630-PS-002 indicates acceptable internal visibility splays and 
forward visibility. 

4.3 Dwg. No. J32-4630-PS003 indicates acceptable visibility splay at the site 
access with the A4130 of 2.4m x 160m in both directions. 

 
4.4 Dwg. No. J32-4630-PS-004 indicates acceptable internal carriageway, footway 

and cycleway dimensions. 
 

4.5 A stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA), including a designer’s response, has been 
submitted. Problems 1 & 2 of the RSA relate to obstacles and delineation of the 
proposed widened shared-use route along the A4130; these have been 
addressed in submitted plans ESA-GEN-XX-DR-CE-SK02 REV D & SK03 REV 
B. However, the Applicant is requested (see below para 5.1) to establish whether 
the shared use route can be delivered without encroaching on third party land or 
the A4130. Problem 3 relates to repositioning of the proposed refuge crossing 
on the A4130 and has been amended. Problems 4-7 relate to issues with 
excessive crossing distances at junctions and have been addressed. 

 
5. Cycling and Walking 
 

5.1 Submitted plans ESA-LE-GEN-XX-CE-SK02 REV D & SK03 REVB detail the 
requested upgrade of the existing northbound footway on the A4130 to a 
minimum 3m width, to allow for a shared-use route for cyclists and pedestrians, 
from the Packhorse Inn bus stops/byway (299/13/30) to the Steventon Lights 
Junction, without compromising the A4130 running lane widths. Whilst on plan a 
3m wide shared use provision can be delivered, which is welcomed, it is evident 
that just to the north of the proposed development access, a section of the shared 
route is encroaching on third party land, not in the control of the Applicant and/or 
the Highway Authority. However, the unknown land status of this land between 
the Highway and the Application boundary can be dedicated through the Land 
Registry ‘gap protocol’ process and at this stage will not be detrimental as to 
whether any planning permission be granted or otherwise.   However, this land 
issue will need to be resolved by the applicant before a highway agreement for 
the delivery of the mitigation works can be completed.  

 
5.2  Furthermore, an informal refuge crossing on the A4130 just south of the junction 

with Milton Hill has also been included, which provides cyclists and pedestrians 
with a safe crossing point and allows for access to Route 4 of the Science Vale 
Active Travel Network and the corresponding bus stop provisions; this is 
welcomed. 

 
5.3 The requested signalised toucan crossing approximately 170m north of the 

vehicular entrance to the proposed development site (previously requested in the 
pre-application comments – 20/V0002/Preapp: 5th March 2020 and the 
application comments – P21/V1171/FUL: 23rd June 2021) has now been 
included in the scheme layout and also welcomed.  

 
5.4 With the full width shared-use route and associated crossings secured via a legal 

agreement, OCC are satisfied that these provisions will provide a meaningful 
modal shift, making the development site more sustainable and ‘presumption in 

Page 97



 Appendix 3 

favour of sustainable development’, which is at the heart of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
6. Public Transport 

 
6.1 As stated in the previous consultee comments, existing pole and flag bus stops 

are provided to the north of the Pack Horse Inn, south of the proposed 
development access. It is required that these stops be repositioned marginally 
further north, so as to be closer to the development (i.e. within 400m). Both stops 
would also require: 

 
• suitable hardstanding and kerbs; 
• at least a 3-bay bus shelter with seating and full-end panels; 
• Real Time Passenger Information displays; 
• pole, flag and timetable case and 
• bus stop clearway markings. 

 
6.2 OCC are of the view that the relocated bus stops can be delivered without 

encroaching on the A4130 or third party land. OCC will expect the Applicant to 
deliver these works as part of the S278 Agreement and provide a commuted 
sum for maintenance. 
 

 
Officer’s Name: Ian Marshall 
Officer’s Title: Principal Transport Engineer 
Date: 2nd February 2022 
 

Page 98



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V3077/HH 

 SITE Dulcina, Newmans Close,  
Upton, OX11 9JA 

 PARISH UPTON 
 PROPOSAL Partial demolition of existing dwelling. 

Erection of new front and rear 
extensions. Conversion of existing loft 
space into habitable accommodation. 
Refurbishment and associated internal 
reconfiguration (parking arrangements 
and fenestration detail clarified on plans 
submitted 28th and 31st January 2022) 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Hayleigh Gascoigne 
Sarah Medley 

 APPLICANT Mr Bartlett 
 OFFICER Nathalie Power 

 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 

 It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the 
following conditions:  

 Standard 
(1) Commencement of development within three years  
(2) Approved Plans list 
 

Pre-commencement  
(3) Tree Protection Details to be submitted  
 

Compliance 
(4) Materials in Accordance with Application Details  
(5) Obscured Glazing (Opening Top Hung Casement Only) 
(6) Rooflights (Sill Height No Lower Than 1.7m from finished floor level) 
(7) Car Parking area to be implemented and kept free of obstruction to use 

 

Informative  
(8) The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 This application is referred to Committee at the request of Councillor Gascoigne.  

1.2 This application site is located within the village of Upton. The building on site is 
a detached bungalow. The site hosts an existing double garage and car parking 
area to the front (east) of the dwelling. This site is not located within a designated 
Conservation Area, or an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  

Page 99

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V3077/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

1.3 Vehicular access is obtained via Newmans Close which adjoins the eastern 
boundary of the site. Neighbouring residential dwellings are located to the north 
and south of the site, and across Newman’s Close to the east. A public right of 
way, Chapel Furlong, runs along the western boundary of the site.  

1.4 A site plan is provided below: 
 

 
 
Extracts from the application plans are attached at Appendix One.  

1.5 The application seeks planning permission for the;  
 

 demolition of a northern section of the dwelling  
(a footprint of approximately 4.70 metres by 8.40 metres)  

 conversion of the existing double garage  
 construction of a first-floor side extension (atop the existing garage) 
 erection of two front extensions  
 erection of a rear extension  
 conversion of the existing loft space, inclusive of front and rear dormers 

 

1.6 The proposed first-floor side extension will be constructed atop the existing flat-
roofed double garage. It will project 6.11 metres from the existing side elevation 
of the building, measuring approximately 6.8 metres in depth. For the avoidance 
of doubt, the roof ridge height of this dwelling as a result of the works will not 
exceed the existing roof ridge height, as shown on submitted existing and 
proposed elevation plans ‘PL007 ‘, ‘PL107´, ‘PL008’, and ‘PL108’.  
 

Page 100



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

1.7 The northernmost front extension proposed will project 4.00 metres from the 
principal (eastern) elevation of the dwelling, with a width of 5.75 metres, and an 
overall gable-ended height of 5.56 metres from the existing ground-floor level.  

1.8 The southernmost front extension proposed will adjoin the proposed first-floor 
side extension, projecting 2.50 metres from the principal (eastern) elevation of 
the dwelling, with a width of 5.75 metres, and an overall gable-ended height of 
5.56 metres from the existing ground-floor level. 

1.9 The proposed rear extension will also adjoin the proposed first-floor side 
extension, projecting approximately 6.20 metres from the rear (western) 
elevation of the dwelling, at a width of 6.85 metres, and an overall gable-ended 
height of 5.56 metres from existing ground-floor level. 

1.10 The resulting loft space is to be converted to host 4 bedrooms and a bathroom 
and will include the introduction of flat-roofed dormers on both the principal and 
rear elevations. The principal dormer will measure 2.3 metres in width, and the 
rear dormer will measure 7 metres in width.  

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
 Below is a summary of the consultation comments received. Copies of the full 

consultation comments are currently available to view on the website.  

2.1 Upton Parish Council 
 

NO MATERIAL OBJECTION 
However, Parish Councillors are mindful of the 
overbearing impact upon adjacent neighbouring 
dwellings, and that this application is part one of a 
scheme to build two dwellings on this site.  

2.2 Highways Liaison 
Officer  
(OCC)  
 

NO OBJECTIONS 
This is subject to provision of 3 spaces (measuring 
to standard) on site. The car parking area shall be 
conditioned to be kept free of obstructions at all 
times and used only for specified purpose.   

2.3 Forestry Officer  
 

NO OBJECTIONS  
This is subject to submission of tree protection 
details for the hedges, and trees indicated to be 
retained, prior to commencement  

2.4 Countryside Access  NO RESPONSE RECEIVED  

2.5 Wychwood OBJECTION  
Proposal will result in harmful overshadowing and 
overlooking, from the southern and eastern 
elevations in particular  

Page 101



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

2.6 Pippins OBJECTION 
Proposal will result in severe harm to private 
residential amenity through overlooking, overbearing 
and by blocking out views of the sky. Further, this 
development will set a precedent in Upton. Looking 
at the surrounding character of the area, the building 
should be set centrally within the plot, not 1 metre 
from the southern boundary.  

2.7 White Cottage OBJECTION 
Proposal will result in harmful overlooking and loss 
of privacy. The proposal does not respect the 
prevailing character of the area. The site should be 
investigated for hazardous materials. The site 
should also be subject to a full ecological survey, as 
White Cottage has a pond in the rear garden visited 
by protected reptiles, such as great crested newts.  
 
Looking at the surrounding character of the area, the 
building should be set centrally within the plot, not 1 
metre from the southern boundary. Further, this 
application is part one of a scheme to build two 
dwellings on this site. It is understood that Planning 
Authorities cannot make judgements based on 
‘intentions’, but this scheme needs to be assessed 
holistically.  

2.8 Larkfield  OBJECTION  
Proposal adversely affects the properties of Pippins 
and White Cottage through overbearing.  Further, 
this application is part one of a scheme to build two 
dwellings on this site. It would not be reasonable for 
this plot to host two dwellings.  

2.9 Kent Cottage OBJECTION 
Proposal will harm private residential amenity 
through overlooking and overbearing. Building 
should be located centrally within the plot.  
 

2.10 3 Alexander Close  OBJECTION 
Proposal will harm private residential amenity 
through overlooking and overbearing, by blocking 
views of the sky. Building should be located centrally 
within the plot.  
 

2.11 Beech Lodge OBJECTION 
Proposal will harm private residential amenity 
through overlooking and physical dominance. The 
dwelling at Dulcina sits in the middle of a sizable 
plot, so the building should be located centrally 
within the plot. 

Page 102



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

2.12 Sunnybank OBJECTION 
Proposal will result in severe harm to private 
residential amenity through being located so close to 
the boundary. The building should be located 
centrally within the plot. 

2.13 Pentrose OBJECTION 
The dwelling at Dulcina sits in the middle of a 
sizable plot, so the building should be located 
centrally within the plot, unless the developer has 
future plans for the remainder of the plot.  

2.14 Kameki OBJECTION 
Proposal is out of keeping with the character of the 
area - which used to be a village of mainly 
bungalows. The proposal also infringes upon privacy 
of adjacent neighbours.  

2.15 Elmsgate OBJECTION 
Proposal will harm private residential amenity 
through overlooking and overbearing. The proposed 
scheme is too close to the boundary, the building 
should be located centrally within the plot. It is likely 
that this development foreshadows further 
development of this plot.  

2.16 Representation  
(Address Unknown)  

OBJECTION 
Proposal will result in severe harm to neighbouring 
residential amenity through overlooking, overbearing 
and by blocking out views of the sky. Developments 
such as this are ruining the rural character of this 
village.  

2.17 Countryside Officer 
[INFORMAL]  

NO CONCERNS  
Based on the submitted information and available 
Council records  

2.18 No further representations received, at the time of writing  

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 P71/V5317 – Approved (01/06/1971) 
Replacement of single garage with a double garage and replacement of coal 
bunker with fuel store. 

 

P60/V5155 – Approved (02/11/1960) 
Erection of seven private bungalows. 

 

P59/V5119 – Approved (08/02/1960)  
Erection of eight dwellings. 

 

P54/V0048 - Approved (27/07/1954) 
Erection of a bungalow and stable adjoining Larkfield. Planning Application 
History 

Page 103

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P54/V0048


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

 
 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 

4.1 An EIA is not considered necessary for this householder development.  
 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The relevant planning considerations in determining this application are; 

 

 Design and Layout 
 Residential Amenity  
 Access, Parking & Highway Safety  
 Mature Trees on Site  
 Potential Land Contamination  
 Local Ecology 
 Other Matters; Development of a Second Dwelling  
 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  

 
5.2 Design and Layout 

 

Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Updated states that new 
development should be visually attractive, and be of a scale, height, density, 
massing and materials that respond positively to the site and surrounding area. 
The Design Guide additionally highlights that extensions should use simple and 
uncomplicated building forms to compliment and coordinate with the scale, 
form and massing of the original dwelling.  
 

5.3 The proposed front extensions will be marginally set down from the existing 
roof ridge, with an eaves height set approximately 90cm higher than that of the 
original dwelling. Extensions should generally be set down to be visibly 
subservient to the original dwelling, however, it is noted that front projections 
such as those proposed are a feature seen at other properties along Newman’s 
Close.  

5.4 In this instance, the depths of the proposed front extensions, relative to the 
scale of the existing dwelling are considered proportionate in scale. Whilst the 
extensions project further than the recommended 1.4 metres held within the 
Design Guide 2015, it must be noted that the building is set over 14 metres 
back from Newman’s Close. This significant setback distance mitigates the 
visual impact of the extensions upon the street scene.  
 

5.5 The proposed first-floor side extension, atop the converted garage, will match 
the height of the existing roof ridge. Given the demolition of approximately 4.80 
metres of the northern end of this building, together with the set back from 
Newman’s Close, the side extension as proposed is not considered to present 
unacceptable harm to the visual amenity of the street scene.  

Page 104



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

5.6 The proposed rear (western) extension is marginally set down from the original 
roof ridge of the dwelling and will adjoin first-floor side extension. The width 
and proposed depth of this extension is significant. However, taking into 
consideration the scale of the proposed development relative to the scale of 
the existing dwelling and plot, the rear extension is considered to be a 
subservient addition that is on balance considered acceptable in scale.  

5.7 The development features flat-roofed dormers on the principal and rear 
elevations. These domestic features are already seen along the street scene 
of Newman’s Close. The proposed dormers will be set down from the roof 
ridge, set in from the gable ends, and set up from the eaves line, in line with 
principles held within the Design Guide 2015. On balance, the dormers are not 
considered to harm the appearance of the dwelling.  
 

5.8 Concerns have been raised regarding the positioning of the dwelling within the 
plot, as a result of the proposed development. The dwelling will be located 
closer to the southern boundary. The character of the area sees dwellings set 
well back from the road and largely set centrally within the plot. The proposed 
development will maintain the significant set-back of the dwelling from 
Newman’s Close, which is considered to reflect the layout of many adjacent 
properties.  
 

5.9 In respect of the concerns raised, the Design Guide highlights that the extent 
of the gap between a side elevation and site boundary should generally be 
determined by the pattern of the development in the area - but should not be 
less than 1 metre wide. The proposed development would measure a minimum 
of 1.60 metres from the southern boundary with adjacent neighbouring 
properties. Whilst this shifts the dwelling off-centre, given the location of this 
site towards the edge of the established built area of Upton, it is not considered 
in this instance that the positioning of the proposed development would pose 
an unacceptable level of harm to the character area of this area.   
 

5.10 The chosen materials will consist of render, timber cladding and roof tiles to 
match the existing. Overall, the scale of the development is considered on 
balance acceptable, with a chosen design and materials that are not 
considered to have an unacceptable impact upon the visual amenity of the 
street scene. The development in considered to be in accordance with Core 
Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1 Updated.  
 

5.11 Residential Amenity 
 

Development Policy 23 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 states that proposals 
should not result in a significantly adverse impact upon the residential amenity 
of neighbours, including through overshadowing, dominance or overlooking. 
Concerns regarding overlooking, overshadowing and overbearing have been 
raised regarding the southernmost elevation of the proposed development, 
which would face the adjoining southern neighbours; White Cottage, Pippins 
and Wychwood. 

Page 105



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

5.12 In terms of overlooking; whilst the proposed development introduces first-floor 
windows on the eastern and western elevations, respectively these will have a 
direct outlook over the car parking area and rear garden of the applicant’s 
property. Some angled obscured views may be obtained of neighbouring rear 
gardens. However, the proposed layout is considered to form part of an 
expected residential relationship, given the orientation of Dulcina relative to the 
southern neighbouring properties.   

5.13 The agent has confirmed that the proposed rooflights on the southern elevation 
would have a minimum sill height of 1.7 metres from finished floor level. 1.7 
metres is considered to be average eye level and is an adopted measurement 
used within Central Government’s Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended. It was 
additionally confirmed that the single bathroom window proposed on the 
southern elevation will be obscure glazed and fixed shut, to mitigate any direct 
overlooking of adjacent private neighbouring amenity space. These elements 
of the development are proposed to be conditioned.  

5.14 On balance the windows proposed on the front (eastern) and rear (western) 
extensions, and the rooflights and window proposed along the southern side 
elevations are not considered to have an unacceptable impact upon existing 
levels of privacy experienced by adjacent neighbouring properties. 

5.15 In terms of overshadowing; the proposal will result in an increase of built form 
along the southern boundary of the application site, which adjoins the rear 
gardens of three neighbouring properties. The built form of the dwelling itself is 
located approximately 20 metres north of the closest residential dwellings of 
White Cottage, Pippins and Wychwood.  
 

5.16 Taking into consideration the east-to-west path of the sun, alongside the 
orientation of the application site and the size of the neighbouring residential 
plots, it is not considered that an adverse impact will be caused through 
overshadowing of private residential amenity space. 

5.17 In terms of overbearing impact; the proposal would result in built form 
measuring approximately 14.30 metres in length and approximately 5.56 
metres in height - set a minimum of 1.60 metres from the southern boundaries 
with neighbouring properties White Cottage, and Pippins.  
 

5.18 The built form of the proposed development will measure over 21 metres from 
the rear elevations of these dwellings. From the visit to site, the proposed 
extensions will be clearly visible from neighbouring residences. However, 
considering the domestic scale of the proposed extensions in addition to the 
plot sizes of these dwellings - it is not considered that the proposed 
development would have an unacceptable impact upon adjacent residential 
amenity through overbearing.   

Page 106



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

5.19 On balance, taking into consideration the domestic scale of the extensions, the 
orientation of the dwellings and the sizes of the adjacent residential plots, the 
development is not considered to harm existing levels of residential amenity 
experienced by neighbours through overlooking, overshadowing or physical 
dominance and would comply with Policy DP23 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 

5.20 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 
 

Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Updated and Development Policy 
16 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 2 state that all proposals for new development 
should ensure a sufficient level of well-integrated car parking, and vehicle turning 
is provided within the site.   

5.21 The development would facilitate the creation of an additional bedroom on site 
and would see the existing double garage converted. The OCC Highways Officer 
has assessed the submitted information and has raised no objection to the 
proposal, subject to the provision of three car parking spaces to standard within 
the curtilage of the dwelling, and their future retention as such.  

 
5.22 The submitted plans demonstrate that the existing drive and car parking area to 

the front of the dwelling is to be retained and altered to provide parking and 
turning for a minimum of three vehicles. As such, Officers do not consider that 
the proposed development poses a risk to local highway safety and would be in 
accordance with Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1 Updated and Policy 16 
of the Local Plan 2031, Part 2.  

5.23 From a visit to site, it was noted that the site currently benefits from two vehicular 
accesses. For the avoidance of doubt the applicant has clarified that the 
northernmost vehicular access is to be blocked up.  This has been annotated on 
the plan.  

5.24 Mature Trees on Site  
 

From a visit to site, it was noted that there are a number of well-established 
mature trees on site. Core Policy 44 highlights that key features, such as trees 
and hedgerows, which contribute to the nature and quality of the Vale of White 
Horse District’s landscape and townscapes should be protected from harmful 
development.  

5.25 The Council’s Forestry Officer has assessed the proposed development and has 
raised no objection, subject to the submission of tree protection details for the 
site prior to any commencement of development. This has been agreed with the 
applicant and is proposed to be applied as a pre-commencement condition.  

5.26 Potential Land Contamination   
 

A neighbouring consultation response has commented that a number of trees 
planted along the border with the application site have died in recent years. They 
have raised concerns that this may be related to soil contamination and have 
requested that a land contamination survey of this application site be undertaken 
by the applicant. From available Council records, the application site has not 
been identified as being within an area of a previous land use known to give rise 
to land contaminants.  

Page 107



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

5.27  Based on this information, land contamination is not considered a constraint to 
this development. Subsequently it is not considered reasonable, nor necessary, 
in planning terms to request a land contamination survey be undertaken for this 
site. 
 

5.28 
 

Local Ecology   
 

A neighbouring consultation response has commented that following the 
creation of a pond in their rear garden, a number of protected species have been 
seen in the area, in particular, Great Crested Newts (GCN). Following an initial 
assessment of the details of this proposal, the Council’s Countryside Officer has 
raised no concerns regarding the proposed development. They have provided 
the following comments explaining this further;  
 

“I’ve reviewed the application submission and the comments provided by the 
occupants of White Cottage, to the south of the application site. I have not 
been to the application site.  
 
Firstly, there is no corroborating evidence (e.g. photos, TVERC records) that 
great crested newts (GCN) are present on site. […] As part of our involvement 
with the GCN district licence scheme, the district has been mapped and 
allocated into different zones based upon the level of risk to GCN. The impact 
risk map has been agreed with Natural England and is a robust way to assess 
impacts on the species at a landscape scale.  
 
When referring to the GCN impact risk map, the application site and White 
Cottage resides in a ‘green’ zone of low risk of impacts to GCN (red is highest 
risk). This does not mean that they are absent for certain, but the surrounding 
area does not provide suitable habitat types, pond density and pond 
connectivity which are likely to support GCN. 
 
Secondly, assuming that GCN are present this pond (see commentary 
above), the scale and nature of development is unlikely to lead to significant 
impacts which would undermine the favourable conservation status of GCN.” 

 
Subsequently, it is not considered reasonable or necessary at this time for an 
ecological survey to be conducted for this proposed householder development.  

5.29 Other Matters; Development of a Second Dwelling  
 

The Parish Council and a number of neighbouring representations have raised 
concerns that the positioning of the development proposed as part of this 
application is to allow for the development of a second dwelling to the north of 
Dulcina.  

5.30 
 

Each planning application must be assessed on its individual merits. If an 
application for the subdivision of the plot and a second dwelling to the north of 
Dulcina is subsequently submitted, this will be assessed against current Local 
Plan Policies. The Parish Council and adjoining neighbours will be consulted as 
part of that process. However, this application proposes householder 
development to Dulcina. The proposed development must be assessed on this 
basis. 

Page 108



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

5.31 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 

CIL is a planning charge primarily calculated on the increase in footprint created 
as a result of the development or net gain of residential use on site.  This 
residential development would exceed 100 m2 and would be liable to pay CIL. 
The relevant forms have been received at this stage, and it is proposed to attach 
an informative for the benefit of the application.  

 
 Pre-commencement Conditions  

 

Following receipt of the Forestry Officer’s response, a pre-commencement 
condition is proposed to be placed upon any permission granted for this 
application, requiring tree protected details to be submitted to, and approved 
by, the technical specialist. In line with The Town and Country Planning (Pre-
Commencement Conditions) Regulations 2018, written agreement has been 
obtained from the agent, on behalf of the applicant, regarding this pre-
commencement condition. The applicant has confirmed acceptance of this 
pre-commencement condition, in an email received on the 10th January 2022.  

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 This application for householder development must be assessed on its 
individual merits. Subject to the attached conditions, the development would not 
have an unacceptable impact upon the character and appearance of the local 
area, private residential amenity, highway safety, nor mature trees on site.  

6.2 Having regard to the above, the weighing of material considerations is in favour 
of granting planning permission for the development. This development is 
considered to accord with the relevant policies of the Development Plan and the 
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021. 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 VOWH Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (Updated) Strategic Sites & Core Policies; 
CP35 – Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37 – Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP44 – Landscape  

 VOWH Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites;  
DP16 – Access 
DP23 – Impact of Development upon Amenity 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Design Guide (adopted March 2015). 
DG103 – Responding to Local Character 
DG104 – Consider Your Neighbours 
DG105 – Scale, Form and Massing 
DG107 – Front Extensions  
DG109 – Side Extensions 
DG110 – Rear Extensions  
 
 
 
 

Page 109



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

  

 National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 

 Planning Practice Guidance  
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in 
the processing of the application and the preparation of this report. The impact 
on individuals has been balanced against the public interest and the Officer 
recommendation is considered to be proportionate. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In assessing this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. It 
is considered that no recognised group will suffer discrimination as a result of 
the proposal.  
 

 Author:      Nathalie Power  

Email:        nathalie.power@southandvale.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01235 422600 

 

Page 110

mailto:nathalie.power@southandvale.gov.uk


25m 0 25m 50m 75m 100m 125m

Existing Site Location Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:1250

Dulcina N
ew

m
ans C

lose

C
hapel Furlong

Fieldside

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:1250 @ A3PL00121.009

Existing Site Location Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 111

SAV_PowerN
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 1 - 1of14 



25m 0 25m 50m 75m 100m 125m

Proposed Site Location Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:1250

Dulcina N
ew

m
ans C

lose

C
hapel Furlong

Fieldside

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:1250 @ A3PL10121.009

Proposed Site Location Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 112

SAV_PowerN_1
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 2 - 2of14 



N
ew

m
ans C

lose

C
hapel Furlong

4m 0 4m 8m 12m 16m 20m

Existing Site Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:200

Access
Existing primary vehicular access.

Access
Existing unused access.

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:200 @ A3APL00321.009

Existing Site Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

A        Car parking spaces included and additional notes.    JB 27.01.22

P
age 113

SAV_PowerN_2
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 3 - 3of14 



4m 0 4m 8m 12m 16m 20m

Proposed Site Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:200

N
ew

m
ans C

lose

C
hapel Furlong

Parking Space
2.5x5m

Parking Space
2.5x5m

Visitors
Parking Space

2.5x5m

Access
Existing primary vehicular access to be

retained.

Access
Existing unused access to be blocked off.

Parking
3no. car parking spaces.

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:200 @ A3APL10321.009

Proposed Site Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

A        Car parking spaces included and additional notes.    JB 27.01.22

P
age 114

SAV_PowerN_3
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 4 - 4of14 



10m 0 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

Existing Block Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:500

Dulcina N
ew

m
ans C

lose

C
hapel Furlong

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:500 @ A3PL00221.009

Existing Block Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 115

SAV_PowerN_4
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 5 - 5of14 



10m 0 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

Proposed Block Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:500

N
ew

m
ans C

lose

C
hapel Furlong

Dulcina

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:500 @ A3PL10221.009

Proposed Block Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 116

SAV_PowerN_5
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 6 - 6of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Existing East and North Elevations
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

03

02

01

East Elevation

North Elevation

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +2.025m

Window Sill +0.825m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +2.025m

Window Sill +0.825m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Ridge Height +4.540m

Ridge Height +4.540m

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL00721.009

Existing East and North Elevations

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 117

SAV_PowerN_6
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 7 - 7of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Proposed East and North Elevations
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

East Elevation

North Elevation

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

Ridge Height +5.563m

U/S of Eaves +3.000m

Window Head +2.025m

Window Head +0.825m

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +3.000m

Door Head +2.025m

Window Sill +1.050m

Ridge Height +5.554m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL10721.009

Proposed East and North Elevations

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 118

SAV_PowerN_7
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 8 - 8of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Existing West and South Elevations
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

South Elevation

West Elevation

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +2.025m

Window Sill +0.825m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Ridge Height +4.540m

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +2.025m

Window Sill +0.825m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Ridge Height +4.540m

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL00821.009

Existing West and South Elevations

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 119

SAV_PowerN_8
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 9 - 9of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Proposed West and South Elevations
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

South Elevation

West Elevation

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +3.000m

Window Head +2.025m

Window Sill +1.050m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Ground Floor FFL +0.00m

U/S of Eaves +3.000m

Ridge Height +5.554m

Ridge Height +5.563m

Windows
All rooflights on the southern elevation of

the building will measure at least 1.7 metres
above the finished floor level.

Windows
Bathroom window on the southern

elevation to be obscured glazed and fixed
shut.

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3APL10821.009

Proposed West and South Elevations

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

A        Window notes added to southern elevation.    JB 01.02.22

P
age 120

SAV_PowerN_9
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 10 - 10of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Existing Ground Floor Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

Bedroom
03

Cpbd

Cpbd

WC Bath

Kitchen Dining

LivingBedroom
01

Bedroom
02

Hall

SVP

Garage

Store

03

02

01

Ex
is

tin
g

M
H

RWP

RWPRWP

RWP

RWP

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL00421.009

Existing Ground Floor Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 121

SAV_PowerN_10
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 11 - 11of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

Ex
is

tin
g

M
H

Living

Living

Dining Kitchen Utility

010203

05

06

07

08

04

N
ew M
H

N
ew M
H

WCLarder/
Cpbd

Cpbd

Office

Hall

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL10421.009

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 122

SAV_PowerN_11
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 12 - 12of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Existing First Floor Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

Loft Space

1000mm h/h

1000mm h/h

2000mm h/h

2000mm h/h

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL00521.009

Existing First Floor Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 123

SAV_PowerN_12
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 13 - 13of14 



2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Proposed First Floor Plan
Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

1:100

10m

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

Bedroom
04

Bedroom
01

Bedroom
02

Bedroom
03

Bath
Ensuite

 01

Ensuite
 02

Cpbd

1800mm h/h

1800mm h/h

Landing

2200mm h/h

2200mm h/h

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Job No: Drawing No: Revision: Scale(s):

Drawn: Checked: Status: Date:

Drawing status: As Indicated
Issued for purpose indicated only. Do not scale from this drawing.
Check all dimensions on site. This drawing is copyright.

Revision: Description: Date:Drawn:

James Basey Architecture
James Basey Architecture

Hawking, Chilton House
Townsend
Chilton

OX11 0SJ

+44 (0)7541738718
james@jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

www.jamesbaseyarchitecture.co.uk

10/2021PlanningJBJB

1:100 @ A3PL10521.009

Proposed First Floor Plan

Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA

Mr Bartlett

P
age 124

SAV_PowerN_13
Typewriter
P21/V3077/HH - Appendix 14 - 14of14 



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V3079/LB 

 SITE Dunraven House 32 London Street 
Faringdon, SN7 7AA 

 PARISH GREAT FARINGDON 
 PROPOSAL Replacement of existing rotting wooden 

slimline double-glazed windows on the 
first and second floor to the rear of the 
property. 

 WARD MEMBER(S) David Grant 
Bethia Thomas 

 APPLICANT David Grant 
 OFFICER Helena Ahier 

 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 It is recommended that Listed Building Consent is granted, subject to the 

following conditions:  
 

 Standard 
1 : Commencement within three years 
2 : Development in accordance with approved plans  
 
Compliance  
3 : Details and materials in accordance with the application details  

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 The application is referred to planning committee as the applicant is a ward 

member. 
 

1.2 Dunraven House is a terraced Grade II listed dwelling located in London 
Street, near the centre of Faringdon. The dwelling fronts onto the highway to 
the north, while the adjoining properties lie to the east and west. The site 
backs onto a small rear parking area accessed from Ferndale Street to the 
south. The application site is located within the Faringdon Conservation Area. 
A site plan is included overleaf:  
 

 
  

Page 125

Agenda Item 10

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V3079/LB


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

 

1.3  

 
 

1.4 The application seeks listed building consent for the replacement of two 
existing wooden slimline double-glazed windows on the first and second floor 
of the rear (south) elevation of the dwelling. The windows would be replaced 
with like for like wooden framed slimline double glazing, painted white.  
Extracts from the application plans and supporting documents are attached at 
Appendix 1.  

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 This is a summary of the final responses received from consultees and third 

parties to the amended application. The full responses can be viewed on the 
council website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

2.2  

Consultee Comment  

Faringdon Town Council 
 

Fully supports. 

Conservation Officer  
 

No objections.  

 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 P21/V1075/LB - Approved (07/07/2021) 
Replacement of the existing impermeable pointing, plaster and rendering with 
breathable lime mortar 
 
P19/V0740/LB - Approved (16/05/2019) 
Replace gas boiler and install condensate pipe. 
 
P17/V2822/LB - Withdrawn (22/11/2017) 
Replace lead valleys (adjoining 32A front and back) with EPDM rubber 
membrane as advised by roofer. 
 

Page 126

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V1075/LB
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V0740/LB
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V2822/LB


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

P16/V1718/LB - Withdrawn (21/10/2016) 
Positive input ventilation which will require internal ducting leading to a drilled 
core hole of 105mm in the external wall covered by an external grill. 
 
P08/V0779/LB - Approved (04/07/2008) 
Replacement windows on the rear elevation, structural repair to cellar wall. 
(Works already undertaken). 
 

3.2 Pre-application History 
None. 
 

3.3 Screening Opinion requests 
Not applicable. 

 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

4.1 Listed building applications do not fall within the defined scope for potential EIA 
development.  
 

5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following:  

 
 Impact on the special interest of the Listed Building 

 
5.2 Impact on the Special Interest of the Listed Building  

Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 requires a local planning authority to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Local Plan Policy CP39 
seeks to ensure that new development conserves and where possible 
enhances designated heritage assets and their setting. Local Plan Policy DP36 
requires that proposals demonstrate that they conserve and enhance the 
special interest or significant of the heritage asset and its setting. Local Plan 
Policy DP38 states that proposals for additions or alterations to a Listed 
Building must demonstrate that they will preserve or enhance its special 
architectural or historic interest and significance. 
 

5.3 This application seeks replacement of two existing wooden slimline double-
glazed windows on the first and second floor of the rear elevation of the 
dwelling with slimline double glazed wooden frames in a heritage style painted 
white, like for like in style. The existing windows are stated to be rotting and in 
a dangerous condition, requiring replacement.  
 

5.4 Officers consider the proposed replacement windows would be suitable for the 
dwelling and would not appear prominent or out of place.  While the 
replacement windows to the rear of the dwelling would be visible from Ferndale 
Street, they would be of a similar appearance and materials to the existing 
windows and in-keeping with the character of the dwelling. 
 

Page 127

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V1718/LB
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/V0779/LB


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

5.5 The works have been carefully considered by the Conservation Officer who is 
satisfied that the proposal would not harm the significance of the listed building 
and has no objections to the works going ahead in accordance with the details 
submitted. 
 

5.6 Officers therefore consider that the works are sympathetic to the special 
historic and architectural interest of the building and would preserve its special 
interest and significance. The works would comply with Policy CP39 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Updated and Policies DP36 and DP38 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 2.  

 
5.7 Community Infrastructure Levy  

The proposal is not subject to CIL.  
 

6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 The works are sympathetic to the special historic and architectural interest of 
the building and would preserve its special interest and significance. The 
proposal therefore complies with the relevant policies within the Development 
Plan. The development is also considered to comply with the provisions of the 
National Planning Policy Framework, and also with the Council’s Design Guide 
SPD 2015. 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Updated (LPP1) Policies 

 
CP39 – The Historic Environment 

 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2) Policies 

 
DP36 – Heritage Assets  
DP38 – Listed Buildings 

 
 Faringdon Neighbourhood Plan 2016-2031 

 

 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Vale of White Horse Design Guide 2015 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 
 

 The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
Section 66: The local planning authority has a duty to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 

 Human Rights Act 1998 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

Page 128



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 15 February 2022 

 

Case Officer: Helena Ahier 
Email: Helena.Ahier@southandvale.gov.uk 
Phone: 01235 422600 

Page 129

mailto:Helena.Ahier@southandvale.gov.uk


Proposed repairs 

BLO 001 P

Appendix 1

Page 130



 

Page 131


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes 20 October 2021

	7 Care Home site, Centre West Phase, Kingsgrove
	Appendices 1-2
	Appendix 1
	Site Plan Proposed drwgno PL02H
	Landscape General Arrangement Rev12


	8 Former Esso Research Centre, Abingdon Road, Milton Hill, OX13 6BD
	Appendices 1-3
	Appendix 1a Site Location Plan drwgno P0101 Rev C
	Sheets and Views
	A1 land


	Appendix 2 19176-P0102P-Masterplan
	Appendix 2b 19176-P1004D-Unit 1 Elevations & Section
	Appendix 2c 19176-P5003D-Unit 5 Elevations & Section
	Appendix 2d Unit 2 Elevations & Section drwgno P2003 Rev D
	Appendix 2e Unit 4 Elevations & Section drwgno P4004 Rev C
	Appendix 2f Unit 4 Gatehouse Plan & Elevations drwgno P4006 Rev B
	Appendix 3 - OCC Highway Comments P21-V1171-FUL4 FINAL Former ESSO Research Centre AMENDED 2.2.22


	9 Dulcina, Newmans Close, Upton, OX11 9JA
	Appendices 1
	Appendix 1_Location Existing_ 1of14
	P

	Appendix 2_Location Proposed_ 2of14
	Appendix 3_Site Existing_ 3of14
	Appendix 4_Site Proposed_ 4of14
	Appendix 5_Block Existing_ 5of14
	Appendix 6_Block Proposed_ 6of14
	Appendix 7_Elevations Existing_ 7of14
	Appendix 8_Elevations Proposed_ 8of14
	Appendix 9_Elevations Existing_ 9of14
	Appendix 10_Elevations Proposed_ 10of14
	Appendix 11_G Floor Existing_ 11of14
	Appendix 12_G Floor Proposed_ 12of14
	Appendix 13_F Floor Existing_ 13of14
	Appendix 14_F Floor Proposed_ 14of14


	10 Dunraven House, 32 London Street, Faringdon, SN7 7AA
	Appendix 1
	Appendix One 1of2
	Appendix One 2of2



